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PROCEEDINGS RESUME ON 30 APRIL 2021  

CHAIRPERSON:    Good morn ing  Mr  Myburgh ,  good  

morn ing  eve rybody.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Good morn ing  Cha i rpe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A re  you read?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.    

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   For  the  record  Mr  Gama is  

rep resented by  -  i s  represented by  the  same lega l  team as 

be fore ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes Cha i rpe rson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r i gh t .   P lease admin i s te r  the  oa th  

or  a f f i rmat ion .  

REGISTRAR:   P lease s ta te  your  fu l l  names fo r  the  record .  

MR GAMA:   S iyabonga Innocent  Gama.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you have any  ob jec t ion  to  tak ing  the  

prescr ibe  oa th?  

MR GAMA:   No.  

REGISTRAR:   Do you cons ider  the  oa th  b ind ing  on  your  

consc ience?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  20 

REGISTRAR:   Do you so lemnly  swear  tha t  the  ev idence  

you w i l l  g i ve  w i l l  be  t ru th ;  the  who le  t ru th  and noth ing  bu t  

the  t ru th  i f  so  p lease ra ise  your  r igh t  hand and say,  so  he lp  

me God.  

MR GAMA:   So  he lp  me God.  



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 4 of 137 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   Thank you.   Good  morn ing  Mr  Gama.  

MR GAMA:   Good  morn ing  Cha i rpe rson how a re  you  today?  

CHAIRPERSON:   I  am a l r igh t  how are  you?  

MR GAMA:   Ve ry  we l l  thanks.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .   Mr  Myburgh are  you  ready?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  Gama where  we ended  o f f  on 

Monday f rom what  I  reca l l  was work ing  th rough the  ro le  

tha t  you p layed overa l l  in  re la t ion  to  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the 10 

1064 locomot ives .   You had exp la ined tha t  you were  

invo l ved in  deve lop ing  the  bus iness case but  a t  the  TFR 

leve l .  

 I  jus t  want  to  ask  you when the  f ina l  bus iness case  

was submi t ted  to  the  Transnet  board  we know i t  was  

approved on the  25 t h  o f  Apr i l  2013  d id  you recommend and  

s ign  tha t  bus iness case –  the  f ina l  bus iness case?  

MR GAMA:   I  wou ld  no t  remember  i s  there  a  document  tha t  

you have tha t  you  want  me to  look  a t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Were  you present  a t  the  board  20 

meet ing?  

MR GAMA:   I  cannot  reca l l  whethe r  I  was or  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   And then you say tha t  you  

were  pa r t  o f  the  post  tender  negot ia t ions  you ment ioned to  

us  and ass is ted  us  w i th  the  de ta i l s  tha t  you were  par t  o f  a  
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locomot ive  s teer ing  commi t tee  and the  co-cha i rpe rson  

together  w i th  Mr  S ingh tha t  tha t  you d id  no t  become 

invo lved in  the  negot ia t ions  pe r  se  is  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And we know tha t  those post  tender  

negot ia t ions  then cu lm inated i n  the  conc lus ion  o f  

locomot ive  serv ice  agreements  wh ich  were  s igned on the  

17 t h  o f  March 2014.   I  th ink  you  d id  ment ion  tha t  those 

negot ia t ions  u l t imate ly  wou ld  resu l t  in  the  conc lus ion  o f  

cont rac ts ,  co r rec t?  10 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And we know then tha t  in  May o f  

2014 the  BADAC and I  th ink  a f te r  tha t  the  board  o f  

d i rec tors  ag reed to  an  increase in  the  ETC,  do  you  p lay  a  

ro le  in  tha t?  Were  you pa r ty  to  the  memoranda tha t  were  

pu t  be fore  the  BADC and the  board  o f  d i rec tors?  

MR GAMA:   Yes  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then I  th ink  tha t  we have  touched 

on th is  as  we l l  –  oh  so r ry  and jus t  to  conf i rm so  the  –  a l l  o f  

those s teps were  a t  the  t ime where  you were  the  CEO of  20 

TFR? 

MR GAMA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We have touched on i t  as  we l l  tha t  

when you then  took up  the  pos i t ion  o f  Group Ch ie f  

Execut ive  whethe r  permanent ly  o r  ac t ing  you p layed  a  ro le  
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in  the  fund ing  o f  the  locomot ives?  You p layed a  ro le  in  the  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank loan and a l so  the  c lub  loan,  i s  

tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:   No I  d id  no t  p lay  any ro le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  we w i l l  come to  tha t .   D id  you  

not  s ign  and author  cer ta in  documenta t ion  re la t ing  to  the 

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank and the  c lub  loan? 

MR GAMA:   I  d id  no t  au thor  any documents  bu t  I  was  

invo l ved in  tak ing  i t  to  the  cor rec t  peop le .   The au thors  o f  

those documents  as  I  have sa id  t o  you when i t  comes to  10 

fund ing  and those are  f inanc ia l  peop le  tha t  dea l  w i t h  those 

issues.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t  we l l  perhaps you cou ld  jus t  

desc r ibe  to  us  what  was your  ro le?  

MR GAMA:   Sor ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   What  was your  ro le  then in  re la t ion  to  

the  Ch ina  Deve lopment  loan and  the  c lub  loan?  These 

were  as  you know agreements  –  consu l tancy ag reements  

adv is ing  agreements  w i th  Reg iments  in  re la t ion  to  the  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank and w i th  Tr i l l i an  in  re la t ion  to  the  20 

c lub  loan.   What  –  how wou ld  you descr ibe  your  ro le  in  

re la t ion  to  those cont rac ts?  

CHAIRPERSON:   Or  maybe wou ld  i t  be  –  maybe i t  wou ld  

be  more  conven ien t  i f  you  took one  by  one Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Say do  you have a  ro le  in  th is  one i f  so  

what  ro le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then the  next  one.  

MR GAMA:   Ja  I  th ink  Cha i r  i t  wou ld  be  bet te r  i f  we went  

th rough the  documenta t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   And then . . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR GAMA:   I t  wou ld  ass is t  h im because I  cou ld  say  I  had a  10 

ro le  I  rea l l y  jus t  came in  a t  the  ta i l  end o f  i t  when peop le  

have . .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   Negot ia ted  and then even the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  

and then they w i l l  say  okay and we now – we now have a  

loan tha t  has been negot ia ted  come le t  us  take  a  p i t ch .  

CHAIRPERSON:   So  we l l  

MR GAMA:   You cannot  –  you cannot  say  you p layed a  ro le  

there .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  th ink  maybe Mr  Myburgh cou ld  20 

take  you one by  one i f  tha t  i s  no t  too  cumbersome.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  –  yes  I  mean each o f  these the  

Ch ina  Deve lopment  Bank loan and  the  c lub  loan is  a  top ic  

in  i t se l f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  I  am go ing  to  examine.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  Gama –  bu t  I  jus t  wanted to  ge t  a  

b i rd ’s  eye v iew o f  h is  overa l l  invo lvement .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  he  says he  w ishes to  dea l  w i th  tha t  

when we come to  the  documents  tha t  i s  per fec t l y  in  o rde r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes so  I  th ink  Mr  Gama you fo r  now you 

can say what  you remember  to  have been your  ro le  i f  you  

do not  remember  tha t  you had a  ro le  you can say I  do  no t  10 

remember  tha t  I  had a  ro le  o r  i f  I  d id  have i t  m igh t  be  an 

ins ign i f i can t  ro le  bu t  then when Mr  Myburgh comes to  the  

ac tua l  documents  then we can go th rough them.  

MR GAMA:   That  i s  co r rec t  Cha i r  as  I  have sa id  the  ra is ing  

o f  those loans I  was not  invo l ved.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   My ro le  wou ld  p robab ly  be  a t  the  ta i l  end –  

ins ign i f i can t .   There  is  no t  anyth ing  much tha t… 

CHAIRPERSON:   That  you d id .  

MR GAMA:   That  I  persona l ly  d id .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR GAMA:   I t  is  ins ign i f i can t .   Maybe you w i l l  see  my  

s ignature  on  one or  two documents .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR GAMA:   I t  does not  mean tha t  I  p layed a  ro le .  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

MR GAMA:   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja  or  i t  m igh t  mean i t  i s  an  ins ign i f i can t  

ro le  as  you put  i t .   Ja  i t  obv ious ly  jus t  depend what  the  

content  o f  the  documents  i s .  

MR GAMA:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .   

MR GAMA:   Then we can go  th rough i t  and  ac tua l  

a r rangement  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  Ja  okay.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then f ina l l y  were  you as  you say  

a t  the  ta i l  end were  you invo lved  a t  a l l  in  the  re loca t ion  

f rom Pre to r ia  to  Durban o f  the  manufac tu r ing  fac i l i t i es  o f  

two o f  the  OEM’s? 

MR GAMA:   No I  was not  invo lved  in  the  negot ia t ion  I  was  

invo l ved in  the  approva l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   A l r igh t  so  you were  invo lved in  

the  approva l  o f  what?   The amounts  and the  payments  

e tce te ra?  

MR GAMA:   Yes in  the  approva l  o f  the  re loca t ion .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Sor ry.  

MR GAMA:   In  the  approva l  o f  the  re loca t ion .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   I  want  to  now look  a t  what  

appears  to  have been go ing  on beh ind  the  scenes .   As  I  

unders tand Mr  Gama under  your  watch  you –  i s  my 
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unders tand ing  co r rec t  tha t  you in i t ia ted  an  invest iga t ion  

in to  the  acqu is i t ion  o f  the  1064 locomot ives?  

MR GAMA:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And was tha t  invest iga t ion  incomple te 

a t  the  t ime tha t  you le f t  Transnet  as  I  have i t  in  October  

2018.  

MR GAMA:   That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We have seen some re ference to  tha t  

in  the  m inutes  o f  the  spec ia l  board  meet ing  o f  the  13 t h  o f  

June 2017 tha t  you produced in  re la t ion  to  the  a f f idav i t  o f  10 

Wi tness 2 ,  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:   Ja  tha t  was the  –  I  th ink  tha t  was the  s ta r t ing  

po in t  where  I  was busy w i th  Terms o f  Reference  fo r  the  

invest iga t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  want  to  jus t  ske tch  to  you ve ry  

br ie f l y  the  ev idence tha t  has emerged f rom the  

invest iga t ions under taken pa r t i cu la r ly  by  the  money f low 

s t ream.   They have led  the  ev idence o f  an  exper t  Mr  Pau l  

Ho lden –  Cha i rperson you w i l l  know tha t  he  is  due to  

cont inue h i s  tes t imony in  the  month  o f  May.    20 

I  shou ld  jus t  make th i s  very  c lear  Mr  Gama tha t  

what  I  am go ing  to  say to  you now i s  what  the  ev idence  

tha t  they have presented appears  to  es tab l i sh  i t .   O f  

course  we w i l l  be  up  u l t imate l y  to  the  DCJ to  dec ide  

whethe r  i t  has  been or  no t .   So I  want  to  qua l i f y  what  I  am 
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go ing  to  say to  you on tha t  bas i s .  

F i r s t l y  what  appears  i s  tha t  in  –  i n  those ins tances 

where  Reg imen ts  was appo in ted  as  the  Supp l ie r  

Deve lopment  par tner  to  McK insey on the  1064 t ransact ion  

adv isor  cont rac t  Mr  Essa was pa id  50% of  a l l  the  fees a t  

Reg iments  w i th  laundry  payments  then hav ing  been made  

to  Gupta  compan ies .   You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:   No I  am not  p r ivy  to  the  repor t  –  I  have not  

seen i t .    I  do  no t  know anyth ing  about  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Second ly  i n  re la t ion  to  th i s  Ch ina  10 

Deve lopment  loan fund ing  cont rac t  wh ich  we spoke about  

what  happened there  and tha t  as  you know was pa r t  o f  the  

fund ing  o f  the  1064 locomot ives .   What  happened there  is  

tha t  Reg iments  were  pa id  a  success fee  and we w i l l  come 

to  th is  la te r  o f  R189 mi l l ion .   78% of  tha t  was pa id  ou t  to  a 

company ca l led  A lber t ime owned  by  Mr  Kuban Mood ley,  

have you heard  tha t  name? 

MR GAMA:   I  have seen the  name in  the  newspapers .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   78% of  the  R189 was pa id  ou t  to  

A lber t ime and then R122 mi l l ion  o f  tha t  landed up w i th  20 

Sahara  Computers  –  was laundered in to  Sahara  

Computers .   You know tha t  Sahara  Compute rs  was a  Gupta  

owned company?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then in  re la t ion  to  the  c lub  loan 
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wh ich  we have a l so  touched upon where  you say you came 

in  a t  the  ta i l  end  and we w i l l  go  to  the  documents  in  t ime 

there  Tr i l l i an  was  pa id  R93 mi l l ion .   80% of  tha t  74% -  R74  

mi l l ion  was pa id  to  A lber t ime.   Do you know anyth ing  about  

tha t?  

MR GAMA:   No I  do  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then what  the  money f lows 

invest iga t ion  has  revea led  and o ther  invest iga t ions is  tha t  

Mr  Essa was invo lved in  the  conc lus ion  o f  a  number  o f  so  

ca l led  BDSA’s  Bus iness Deve lopment  Serv i ces  Agreements  10 

essent ia l l y  wou ld  ge t  a  commiss ion  fo r  b roke r ing  a  dea l .   

He conc luded such an ag reement  w i th  CSR in  respect  o f  

the  359 e lec t r i c  locomot ives  tha t  had a  cont rac t  va lue  as  

you know o f  R18 b i l l i on .   I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:   I  cannot  remember  what  CSR cont rac t  was.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And the  agreement  p rov ides fo r  

Tequesta  wh ich  was the  –  the  company tha t  Mr  Essa was  

invo lved in  rece iv ing  a  21% commiss ion .    

 Invest iga t ion  has a lso  revea led  tha t  Mr  Essa 

conc luded a  number  o f  these agreements  inc lud ing  another  20 

one w i th  CNR in  respect  o f  the  232 d iese l  locomot ives  the  

par t  o f  the  1064 t ransact ion  where  the  cont rac t  va lue  was 

R9.9  b i l l i on .  

 So he had more  than ha l f  o f  the  1064 locomot ives  

covered by  these so  ca l led  BDSA’s .   You know anyth ing  
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about  tha t?  

MR GAMA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   In  fac t  and  now I  go  ou ts ide  o f  the  

1064 what  money  –  the  money f lows ev idence is  showing is  

tha t  Mr  Essa had  a  BDSA wi th  CSR in  respect  o f  t he  359  

e lec t r i c  locomot i ves  to  a  s im i la r  agreement  w i th  CSR in  

respect  o f  the  95  locomot ives ,  s im i la r  agreement  in  respect  

o f  100 locomot ives  and there  invest iga t ion  has revea led  

tha t  so  fa r  CSR have made k i ckback payments  o f  123 

mi l l ion  do l la rs  to  Gupta  Enterp r ises .   Comment  on  tha t?  10 

MR GAMA:   No I  do  no t  know anyth ing  about  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   The o ther  th ing  tha t  has emerged is  

tha t  Mr  Sharma the  cha i rperson  o f  the  BADAC at  the  

mater ia l  t imes had a  mat r ix  o f  bus iness re la t ionsh ips  w i th  

Mr  Essa.   You know anyth ing  abou t  tha t?  

MR GAMA:   I  th ink  there  was an occas ion  to  inves t iga te  a  

re la t ionsh ip .   I  th ink  the  board  d id  an  invest iga t ion  in to  Mr  

Sharma.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   Re la ted  w i th  bus iness tha t  was ca l led  VR 20 

Laser.  I  do  no t  know any o the r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now you were  –  you sa t  on  the  board  

together  w i th  Mr  Sharma,  i s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:   I t  i s  no t  co r rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   R igh t .   D id  you in te rac t  a t  a l l  w i th  Mr  
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Sharma? 

MR GAMA:   Ja  occas iona l l y.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   In  what  contex t  Mr?  

MR GAMA:   He was the  cha i r  o f  the  BADAC so f rom t ime to 

t ime when we went  to  p resent  I  was not  a  member  o f  the 

board .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  th is  i s  a t  the  t ime where  you were  

a t  TFR.  

MR GAMA:   I  was  a t  TFR yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .   And you are  co r rec t  in  fac t  in  10 

those minutes  o f  the  meet ing  o f  the  13 t h  o f  June wh ich  we 

spoke o f  a  l i t t le  ear l ie r  there  is  re fe rence to  tha t  to ,  i s  

there  no t?  

MR GAMA:   Sor ry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   There  is  re fe rence in  the  m inutes  o f  

the  meet ing  o f  the  13 t h  o f  June wh ich  we spoke o f  a  l i t t le  

ear l ie r  to  an  invest iga t ion  or  i ssues in  re la t ion  to  Mr  

Sharma? 

MR GAMA:   That  i s  co r rec t  yes .   I t  had not  been comple ted  

I  th ink  a t  tha t  t ime.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  had not  been comple ted  when you le f t /  

MR GAMA:   No I  am say ing  we a re  ta lk ing  about  the  fac t  

tha t  i t  had not  been comple ted  tha t  invest iga t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh –  oh  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Perhaps I  cou ld  j us t  take  you a t  th is  
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po in t  to  Exh ib i t  27  you have i t?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Refe r red  to  as  the  Transnet  POI  

Refe rence Bund le .   Cou ld  I  ask  you p lease to  tu rn  to  page 

319 par t  o f  the  MNS repor t  where  they dea l  w i th  a  

re la t ionsh ip  be tween Mr  Essa and Mr  Sharma.   I t  i s  

Transnet  Bund le  6  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   One second Mr  Myburgh.   Thank  you Mr  

Myburgh d id  you say page 318?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Page –  so  Transnet  Bund le  6 .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Exh ib i t  BB27 page 319 Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a l r i gh t .   So there  you  see a t  

parag raphs 3 .1 .15  and 3 .1 .16  the i r  f ind ings in  re la t ion  to  

the  connect ions be tween …o there  you see a t  paragraphs  

3 .1 .15  and 3 .1 .16  the i r  f ind ings in  re la t ion  to  the  

connect ions be tween … 

MR GAMA:   Sor ry  a re  you us ing  the  b lack  numbers  o f  the  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes I  am us ing  the  b lack  numbers  on  

the  le f t  hand s ide .  20 

MR GAMA:   Oh so  I  am on the  r igh t  number.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh okay.  

MR GAMA:   319?  

CHAIRPERSON:   319.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   319.    
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MR GAMA:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  there  you wou ld  have seen the  

mat r ix  o f  re la t ionsh ips  be tween Mr  Sharma and Mr  Essa –  

you wou ld  have seen th i s  be fore ,  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:   I  have not  app l ied  my mind to  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t .  

MR GAMA:   I  have not .   Jus t  a  f lee t ing  g lance.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then the  o the r  th ing  tha t  has 

emerged f rom the  invest iga t ions tha t  i s  o f  re levance f rom 

an overa l l  pe rspect ive  and th i s  re la tes  –  th i s  re la tes  to  the  10 

re loca t ion .   You –  are  you aware  o f  the  fac t  tha t  CNR SA 

conc luded a  bus iness deve lopment  supp ly  ag reement  w i th  

a  company ca l led  Becks in  re la t i on  to  the i r  re loca t ion  to  

Durban?  

MR GAMA:   Yes I  am – I  became aware  o f  i t  Mr  Gonca lves 

o f  the  CNR consor t ium came to  i nd ica ted  to  us  tha t  there  

was such an agreement  and we requested tha t  Werksmans 

A t to rneys invest iga te  i t  on  our  beha l f .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then what  the  ev idence po in ts  to  

i s  tha t  Becks ob ta ined a  commiss ion  o f  some R67 mi l l ion  20 

and money f lows in tends to  dea l  w i th  th is  t ransact ions and 

present  ev idence  to  es tab l i sh  tha t  Becks is  a lso  a  Gupta 

l ink .   Have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:   I  am not  p r ivy  to  the  –  what  you ca l l  i t  the  

conc lus ions o f  tha t  invest iga t ion .   I  have never  seen i t  the 
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conc lus ions o f  the  invest iga t ion  so  I  do  no t  know anyth ing  

about  i t  bu t  I  know tha t  when i t  was ra ised w i th  me I  –  the  

f i rs t  s tep  I  d id  invest iga t ion  immedia te ly  commenced  w i th .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  what  you see is  th is  sor t  o f  

common th read  tha t  runs th roughout  i s  rea l l y  the 

invo l vement  o f  Mr  Essa –  he  is  invo lved in  e f fec t  in  the  164 

t ransact ion  adv isor  cont rac t  ge t t ing  50% of  the  fees o f  

Reg iments .   The  fund ing  agreements  Ch ina  Deve lopment  

Bank,  Tr i l l i an ,  the  bus iness deve lopment  agreements  w i th  

two o f  the  OEM’s .   What  connect ions w i th  Mr  Sharma 10 

e tce te ra .   You see tha t  common denominator  o r  th read? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  th is  i s  the  person tha t  you  met  in  

Duba i  in  January  o f  2016,  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:   That  i s  cor rec t  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Cou ld  I  ask  you to  go  to  the  bund le  

where  cer ta in  documents  have been added.  And le t  me 

take you to  documents  re la t ing  to  your  s tay  a t  the  Obero i  

Hote l .   Cou ld  I  ask  you to  go  to  –  and t ry  and dea l  w i th  

them in  chrono log ica l  o rder  so  i t  w i l l  be  eas ie r  fo r  20 

everybody.   I  wan t  to  s ta r t  o f f  … 

CHAIRPERSON:   I s  i t  Bund le  6?  

MR GAMA:   Which  bund le  do  you want  us  to  go  to?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your  pardon Bund le  28  your  

bund le  BB28.   I t  is  Transnet  Bund le  7  Cha i rperson.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So  Bund le  7?   Transnet  Bund le  7?   

Transnet  Bund le  7  i s  i t  here?  Oh I  have got  i t  ja .    

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Cou ld  you p lease tu rn  to  page 335 i t  

i s  r igh t  a t  the  end.   When I  say  r igh t  a t  the  end i t  i s  about  

th ree  pages f rom there .  

CHAIRPERSON:   335?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.   A re  you there?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Mr  Gama I  am go ing  to  take  you to  a  

ser ies  o f  four  o r  f i ve  documents  –  Cha i rperson I  must  p lace  10 

on record  in  fa i rness to  Mr  Gama tha t  as  you are  aware  

these documents  re la t ing  to  the  Obero i  Hote l  and th is  

fea tured as  you know in  Mr  S ingh ’s  examinat ion  a re  par t  o f  

the  Gupta  Leak documents  and as  you a lso  aware  there  is  

a  p ro jec t  and I  ac tua l l y  unders tand you to  have conf i rmed 

th is  the  o the r  day  when dea l ing  w i th  the  d i f fe ren t  w i tness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   There  is  a  p ro jec t  tha t  i s  be ing  

under taken present ly  w i th in  the  commiss ion  to  au thent ica te 

these va r ious documents .  20 

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  I  –  I  jus t  po in t  tha t  ou t  to  Mr  

Gama in  fa i rness.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Now Mr  Gama a t  page 335 what  you 
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see  the  f i rs t  emai l  f rom the  Obero i  Duba i  Hote l  on  the  20 t h  

o f  January  2016  and i t  i s  sent  to  ashu@sahara .co .za  do  

you know who Ashu is?  

MR GAMA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Have you heard  o f  Ashu Chawla?  

MR GAMA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   He a t  a  po in t  was the  CEO of  Sahara 

Computers .   You want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:   No I  do  no t  know h im.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And the  Obero i  Hote l  i s  send ing  a  10 

reserva t ion  conf i rmat ion  to  h im in  re la t ion  to  you and you 

w i l l  see  Reserva t ion  Conf i rma t ion  your  guest  name 

S iyabonga Gama,  you go ing  to  a r r i ve  on  Fr iday the  22n d  o f  

January  and leave on Sunday the  24 t h  o f  January.   We 

have conf i rmed those dates  a l ready.   Cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then over  the  page 336 you w i l l  

see  tha t  you had been r igh t  a t  the  bo t tom booked a  de luxe  

su i te ,  do  you see  tha t?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I f  you  go back to  page 335 what  you  

see is  tha t  Mr  Chawla  then a l so  on  the  20 t h  o f  January 

fo rwards th i s  reserva t ion  to  an  emai l  address  read ing  

sa l imessa@gmai l . com do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i t  i s  your  own tes t imony  tha t  Mr  

Essa ass i s ted  you in  book ing  th is  accommodat ion .  

MR GAMA:   Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then the  second document  tha t  I  

want  to  take  you to  p lease is  to  be  found a t  page 328 and I  

do  apo log ise  these a re  ou t  o f  ch rono log ica l  o rder  tha t  i s  

why I  am dea l ing  w i th  them in  th is  way.   A t  328 on the  face  

o f  i t  you  f ind  an  invo i ce  f rom the  Obero i  Hote l  i t  re fe rs  to  

you and under  tha t  Sahara  Computers .   The company is  

re f lec ted  as  Sahara  Computers .   On the  r igh t  hand s ide  10 

ar r i va l  22  January  depar tu re  24  January.   Jus t  be fore  the  

doub le  l ines  on  the  le f t  hand s ide  you see the  word  B i l l i ng.   

Oppos i te  tha t  i t  reads Ent i re  b i l l  to  Sahara  Computers  and 

then * * *  no  pre-auth  * * *  and then the  b i l l  appears  to  have 

come to  AED 4650.   You see tha t?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i t  then appears  to  have been 

s igned by  you,  wou ld  you conf i rm tha t?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And says tha t  above your  s ignature :  20 

“ I  agree tha t  I  am respons ib le  fo r  the  

payment  o f  th is  b i l l  i n  the  event  tha t  i t  i s  

no t  pa id  by  the  company f rom an 

organ isa t ion  or  the  person ind i ca ted . ”  

You see tha t?  
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MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And wou ld  I  –  i s  you r  unders tand ing  

the  same as m ine tha t  tha t  wou ld  then be a  re fe rence in  

th is  case to  Sahara  Computers?  

MR GAMA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   To  whom wou ld  i t  be  a  re ference?  

MR GAMA:   I t  was jus t  –  i t  i s  one o f  those th ings when you  

get  to  check ou t  they show you tha t  b i l l  and they say s ign  

here  and you s ign  fo r  the  b i l l .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Wel l  I  –  we l l  the  –  I  th ink  the  p ropos i t ion  10 

maybe can be pu t  th is  way tha t  in  the  wr i t ing  tha t  appears  

immedia te ly  above your  s ignature  the  re ference  to  the 

company organ isa t ion ,  there  mus t  be  a  re ference  to  the 

company organ isa t ion  re f lec ted  in  the  invo i ce .   Now tha t  i s  

one th ing .   You seem to  be  say ing ,  as  I  unders tand you.   

What  you are  emphas is ing  is .   You know,  they pu t  th is  

maybe as  you were  check ing  ou t ,  in  f ron t  o f  you,  se t  as ide  

and you s igned i t .  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Which  does no t  necessar i l y  mean tha t  20 

the  re fe rence in  those words to  the  company is  no t  the  

re ference to  the  company wr i t ten  in  the  invo i ce  bu t  may  

s imp le  mean tha t  you are  say ing :   I  d id  no t  even check.   I  

jus t  s igned because i t  i s  some what  you get  g iven as  you  

check ou t .   So.  



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 22 of 137 
 

MR GAMA :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  do  no t  know.   I  am not  pu t t ing  words 

in to  your  mouth  bu t  I  want  to  t ry  and d i s t ingu ish  be tween  

the  two scenar ios .  

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  as  I  was te l l ing(?)  Cha i r,  they  show you  

the  to ta l  amount .   That  i s  the  mos t  impor tan t  th ing  and you  

can a lways check whethe r  they d id  no t  pu t  anyth ing  tha t  

you do not  know o f .   I f  the  b i l l  i s  what  i t  i s ,  you s ign  fo r  i t  

and I  do  no t  know peop le  who then read tha t  f ine  p r in t  bu t  

-  may not  what  i s  wr i t ten  there .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  I  can  te l l  you  tha t  I  tend to  read 

qu i te  a  lo t  because I  th ink  tha t  nobody w i l l  be l ieve  me 

when I  say  I  s igned w i thout  read ing ,  as  a  judge.   So  

[ laughs]   Norma l ly.   And I  th ink  tha t  wou ld  app ly  to  

Mr  Myburgh too .   [ laughs]   So I  tend to  read a  b i t  and make 

sure  I  know what  i s  wr i t ten .  

MR GAMA :    Normal ly,  peop le  look a t  the  amount  whethe r  I  

am be ing  charged  the  cor rec t  amount .   In  most  ho te l s  when 

you check ou t  they le t  you s ign  someth ing .   Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay Mr  Myburgh.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  I  suppose then the  quest ion  is .   

When you checked out ,  on  the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  does not  appear  

tha t  you pa id  th is  b i l l  o r  d id  you?  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  I  d id  pay fo r  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  there  is  another  –  there  shou ld  
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have been someth ing  e lse  tha t  then re f lec ts  a  nu l l  ba lance 

because what  you s igned shows a  ba lance owing o f  

4  650,00.   Cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    I t  does not  show a  ba lance owing.   I t  jus t  

shows the  to ta l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.    

MR GAMA :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I t  jus t  shows how much the  amount  i s .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  i t  says  ba lance  in  AED 10 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    . . . those show us the  amount  o f  the  b i l l .   That  

i s  a l l  i t  means.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t ,  Mr  Gama.   Le t  us  go  to  page  

317.   So tha t  b i l l  you  wou ld  have s igned,  cor rec t  me i f  I  am 

wrong,  on  the  24 t h  o f  January  when you checked ou t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    24  January  . . . [ in te rvenes]   20 

CHAIRPERSON :    And you wou ld  have pa id  on  the  same 

day?  

MR GAMA :    I  wou ld  have se t t led  the  same day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    On 24 January  2016?  
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MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And le t  us  have a  look a t  page 317.   

Th is  i s  an  invo ice  tha t  i s  addressed f rom the  Obero i  to  

Sahara  Compute rs ,  on  the  face  o f  i t .   The date  i s  

2  February  2016.   So tha t  i s  more  than a  week la te r.   And  

you w i l l  see  the re  i t  l i s ts  a  number  o f  s tays  i nc lud ing  

yours .   Your  name is  re f lec ted  there .   Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  I  see tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    22 n d  January  to  24  January  and the  

amounts  ta l l y  up  w i th  the  invo i ces 3  to  8 .   I t  i s  the 10 

4  650,00 AED.   Cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now what  we a l so  pu t  in  the  bund le ,  

i s  no t  necessary  to  go  th rough i t ,  is  some invo ices o f  o ther  

peop le  whose name appear  on  tha t  l i s t .   Mr  Koko,  

Mr  Mantsha.   You know them,  do  you?  

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  I  know them.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  you  then go –  so  tha t  i s  the  

2 n d  o f  February  2016.   Le t  us  go  to  the  next  document .   

That  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 334.   Th is  i s  some th ree  weeks 20 

la te r.   Anothe r  invo i ce  to  Sahara  Computers .   And aga in ,  

your  accommodat ion  is  l i s ted  there  in  the  amount  o f  

4  650,00 AED s t i l l  be  owing.   Cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  I  see tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ye t  you say  you pa id  th is?  
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MR GAMA :    Yes,  I  d id  pay i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And you say you pa id  i t  on  the  

24 t h  o f  January?  

MR GAMA :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wou ld  you  have pa id  i t  w i th  your  

. . . [ ind is t inc t ]  c red i t  card?  

MR GAMA :    So ,  I  do  no t  know.   I  do  no t  want  to  take  

respons ib i l i t y  fo r  th is  document  because I  d id  no t  wr i te  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GAMA :    I t  says  invo i ce .   I  am sure  –  maybe i t  comes  10 

f rom the  hote l .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    Bu t  somet ime la te r  because I  d id  no t  have –  I  

cou ld  no t  f ind  a  copy o f  the  invo ice  tha t  I  pa id ,  I  wro te  to  

the  ho te l ,  p robab ly  in  2018,  thereabouts  or  2017.   I  cannot  

remember.   I  wro te  to  the  ho te l  and I  asked them to  send  

me my invo ice  and they d id  and the  invo i ce  w i l l  show tha t  I  

pa id  on  the  day  tha t  I  le f t .   I  do  no t  know i f  my team 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Do you s t i l l  have  the  invo i ce?  20 

MR GAMA :    My team has got  a  copy o f  the  invo ice  and i f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  i t  wou ld  be  impor tan t  to  make i t  

ava i lab le .    

COUNSEL :    Mr  Cha i r,  we a re  indeed in  possess ion  o f  tha t  



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 26 of 137 
 

document .   I t  i s  perhaps someth ing ,  when I  do  re -examine  

Mr  Gama,  w i l l  fea ture  in  tha t  re -examinat ion  bu t  I  can  

conf i rm tha t  there  is  such a  document  and in  accordance  

w i th  Mr  Gama’s  ev idence,  tha t  account  was se t t led  on  the  

24 t h  o f  January  2016 and the  document  o f  the  l e t te rhead o f  

the  Obero i  Hote l ,  in  fac t ,  demonst ra tes  and re f lec t s  a  nu l l  

ba lance on tha t  very  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Why has tha t  document  no t  been made 

ava i lab le  to  us?  

COUNSEL :    I t  was most  recent ly  co l la ted .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

COUNSEL :    I  have not  had s igh t  o f  i t  be fore  the  day  

be fore  yeste rday.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Cha i rperson,  i t  i s  no t  an  issue.   

The i ssue o f  the  –  I  am happy to  ho ld  i t  over  and perhaps  

have a  look a t  i t  a t  luncht ime but  I  am go ing  to  dea l  w i th  

o ther  th ings tha t  re la te  to  th is  invo ice  in  any event .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So .   But  we w i l l  feed in to  tha t .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   But  what  I  do  want  to  

say is  tha t  i f  there  are  any documents  tha t  Mr  Gama or  h is  

lega l  team have  wh ich  are  re levant  o r  mater ia l  to  any 

aspect  o f  the  mat te rs  tha t  he  is  dea l ing  w i th ,  the  sooner  we 

a l l  have those documents ,  the  be t te r.   Par t i cu la r l y  because  
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i f  h is  counse l  i s  go ing  to  re -examine on them,  there  shou ld  

be  ear l ie r  on  them.    

 So I  unders tand i f  i t  was recent ly  ob ta ined but  i f  

a l l  a r rangements  can be made so  tha t  we a l l  have them,  

jus t  l i ke  the  Lega l  Team makes ava i lab le  documents  tha t  i t  

w i l l  re fe r  Mr  Gama to ,  the  same shou ld  happen.   So tha t  

wou ld  be  he lp fu l .   Okay a l r igh t .  

MR GAMA :    Look,  Cha i rperson.   Th is  i s  two days ago,  two  

n igh ts  ago.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MR GAMA :    Th i s  document  were  sudden ly  emai led  to  us .  

CHAIRPERSON :    These . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    These ones tha t  Mr  Myburgh i s  ask ing  me to  

go  th rough.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  you say . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    They were  sent  to  us  two n igh ts  ago and  

noth ing  e lse .   I t  jus t  sa id :   Look,  here  is  a  l ink ,  open i t .   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  20 

MR GAMA :    So  and then i t  came wi th  these documents .   

There  has no  one been in .   There  has been noth ing  to  say  

what  those documents  are  w i thout  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR GAMA :    . . .even say there  are  new documents  tha t  you 
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do  no t  have.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    Two n igh ts  ago a t  ten  in  the  even ing ,  these 

documents  ar r i ved.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No,  tha t  i s  f ine .   What  we  shou ld  

do  is .   I  mean,  we jus t  need to  t ry  and share  as  ear l y  as  we  

can and where  there  has no t  been adequate  t ime,  le t  us  

see how we can  hand le  those s i tua t ion .   The idea be ing  

tha t  we want  tha t  to  be  fu rn ished to  everybody.   Okay  

a l r igh t .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i r,  I  jus t  wanted to   po in t  ou t .  

COUNSEL :    Sor ry.   I t  i s  impor tan t  tha t  I  p lace  th is  on  

record .   So what  Mr  Gama has been moan ing  is  what  i s  

conta ined in  tha t  second s ta tement  because th is  has been 

in  the  manner  in  wh ich  he  has been dea l t  w i th .   I  am sure  

tha t  you w i l l  g i ve  h im the  oppor tun i ty  to  p lace  on  record  

what  h is  concerns are  bu t  ce r ta in l y  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

COUNSEL :    . . . there  was no contex t  to  when we rece ived  

these documenta t ion  two n igh ts  ago and tha t  i s  the  th ing  20 

w i th in  wh ich  he  has been dea l t  w i th  in  these proceed ings 

and he i s  aggr ieved by  tha t  fac t .   I  must  jus t  pu t  tha t  on  

record .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes  Mr  Gama,  do  you fee l  in  your  
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ev idence now tha t  you have  been  ab le  to  dea l  adequate ly  

w i th  these documents?  

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  i t  does not  de l ineate  f rom the  fac t  tha t  a  

lo t  o f  these th ings –  the  manner  in  the  way i t  wh ich  

documents  are  d is t r ibu ted .   To  me,  i t  i s  jus t  des igned to 

c rea te  some k ind  o f  an  ambush where  you do not  know tha t  

you have a  document .   You never  d iscussed i t .   Bu t  peop le  

who w i l l  say  to  you:   Oh,  p lease have a  look  a t  th is  

document .   Th is  i s  the  new pag ina t ion .   But  they do  not  te l l  

you  there  are  new documents  tha t  you have never  seen.    10 

 I t  i s  no t  jus t  th is  mat te r.   There  is  a  mat te r  –  I  

was here  -  I  was  be ing  asked on whethe r  I  met  Pres ident  

Zuma.   And las t  week,  I  rece ived new documents  wh ich  the  

Commiss ion  has  had s ince  October  las t  year  tha t  says 

there  was a  funct ion  in  Durban  tha t  was sponsored by  

Transnet .   But  I  have been asked  a  quest ion  be fo rehand 

and you cannot  he lp ,  Cha i r,  bu t  th ink  tha t  you ge t  asked 

quest ions and they des igned,  mere l y  to  jus t  ambush you.    

 Peop le  have documents  they w i thho ld  now.   And 

then they are  hop ing  tha t  maybe you might  say  someth ing  20 

tha t  wou ld  then not  co r robora te  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  they 

have.   Th is  i s  no t  the  on ly  th ing .   I  have ta lked about  the  

to re(?)  documents  in  the  past .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GAMA :    The  a f f idav i t  tha t  taught (? )  –  had a t tes ted  to  
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wh ich  were  in  the  possess ion  o f  the  Commiss ion  wh ich  

were  no t  been g iven to  me wh ich  a re  no t  been g iven 

t imeous ly.    

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GAMA :    I  can  go on and on.   There  are  many o f  these 

par t i cu la r  th ings tha t  come th rough.   That  these – there  i s  

a lso  the  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  documents  tha t  jus t  came th rough  

w i th  th is  document  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GAMA :    . . . tha t  were  no t  the re  be fore  bu t  you do not  10 

ge t  a  warn ing ,  Cha i r,  to  say :   We have these new 

documents .   You jus t  ge t  g iven.   Or,  here  is  your  new 

bund le .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   No.   One.   Wel l ,  i f  you  are  asked 

about  a  document  tha t  you have not  had enough t ime 

about ,  jus t  ra ise  tha t  and we w i l l  look  a t  tha t  so  tha t ,  i f  a t  

a l l  poss ib le ,  tha t  can be defer red  so  tha t  you have had  

t ime to  look  a t  i t  to  the  ex ten t  tha t  there  documents  tha t  

you have been g iven where  you  do not  know what  the  

contex t  i s  o r  wha t  the  issues are  about  i t .   You w ish  to  be  20 

adv ised.   P lease  say so ,  so  tha t  you can be adv i sed and 

then we w i l l  do  what  we can to  make su re  tha t  there  is  

fa i rness.   Okay.   Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   Perhaps I  cou ld  a lso  jus t  p lace  

th is  on  record .   Of  cou rse ,  the  Commiss ion ’s  invest iga t ion  



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 31 of 137 
 

i s  an  ongo ing  invest iga t ion  and  there  are  va r ious work  

s t reams.   I  was,  in  fac t ,  p rov ided w i th  cer ta in  o f  these  

documents  by  the  Money- f lows ’ work  s t ream af te r  Mr  Gama 

gave h is  ev idence.   The o ther  se t  o f  document ,  wh ich  we 

w i l l  come to  now,  i t  i s  a  donat ion  to  the  Jacob Zuma 

Foundat ion .   Those documents  were  prov ided to  me by an  

ev idence leader.   I  th ink  i t  i s  ca l led  the  TNA Work  s t ream.   

So tha t  i s  how we came to  ge t  them.   So,  perhaps,  tha t  

a lso  needs to  be  taken in to  cons idera t ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   So somet imes documents  are  10 

w i th in  the  possess ion  o f  the  Commiss ion  bu t  they are  no t  

in  a  par t i cu la r  work  s t ream.   They are  w i th  a  d i f fe ren t  work  

s t ream.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And one work  s t ream gets  to  know about  

them . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .a t  a  cer ta in  s tage.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The o ther  th ing ,  wh ich  is  a lso  

impor tan t ,  Cha i r,  to  bear  in  m ind  is  tha t  the  re levance o f  20 

these Obero i  documents  a l so  impacted on Mr  S ingh ’s  

ev idence.   So i t  i s  impor tan t  fo r  us  tha t  Mr  Gama has 

conf i rmed tha t  the  au tho r  -  a t  leas t  one o f  these s t reams.   

So they have o ther  imp l ica t ions and they come to  be  here  

no t  on ly  in  re la t ion  to  Mr  Gama.   I  th ink  the  Cha i r  must  
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. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes bu t  maybe you cou ld  cons ider  o f  the  

fu tu re  tha t  i f  documents  a re  sent  there  are  some emai l  o r  

someth ing  tha t  says . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ident i f ies .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  what  they are  and where  they  f i t  in to 

anyth ing  in  the  who le  mat te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  a  po in t  we l l  taken.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    O f  course ,  Cha i r,  i f  you  go  to  the  10 

index,  you cou ld  a lways work  ou t  where  i t  was befo re .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And what  a re  the  new i tems.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Bu t  i t  more  –  tha t  cou ld  ce r ta in ly  be  

done bet te r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay a l r i gh t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I f  we go to  page 334,  Mr  Gama.   On 

the  face  o f  i t ,  i t  appears  tha t  Mr  Duduzane Zuma and then  

Mr  A Gupta  a lso  s tayed in  tha t  ho te l  a f te r  you and tha t  20 

Sahara  Compute rs  was b i l led .   Cor rec t ,  on  the  face  o f  i t? 

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  I  cannot  ta lk  to  th is  document .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Sure .  

MR GAMA :    I t s  au thent i c i t y,  i t s  t ru th fu lness.   I  d id  no t  

d raw i t .   And as  I  say,  i t  purpor ts  tha t  there  were  amounts  
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ou ts tand ing  a t  t imes when they were  no t .   So I  do  no t  know 

how those peop le  work  and how they dea l  w i th  those  

issues but  fo r  me ,  i t  i s  no t  my p lace to  comment  about  tha t  

document .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cou ld  I  then take  you,  p lease,  to  

page 310?  

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now th is  i s  a  Times L ive  ar t i c le  tha t  

appears  to  have been pub l i shed  on the  

7 t h  o f  September  2017.   D id  you read th is  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON :    On what  page d id  you say?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Page  317.   I t  i s  250.317,  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    D id  you have occas ion  to  read th i s  

a r t i c le  in  o r  about  the  t ime tha t  i t  was pub l i shed? 

MR GAMA :    I  cannot  reca l l .   There  qu i te  a  lo t  o f  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Can you reca l l  hav ing  been  

contac ted  by  the  journa l i s t  fo r  comment?  20 

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The journa l i s t  appears  to  be  Cow 

Cohen.   Can you reca l l  tha t  person  hav ing  contac ted  you? 

MR GAMA :    I  have spoken to  so  many journa l i s ts .   I  

cannot . . .   I  cannot  conf i rm whether  I  have spoken  to  th is  
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one o r  no t .   I  mean,  I  have no t  had t ime to  read th is  

a r t i c le .   I t  i s  a lso  one o f  those new documents . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  le t  us  see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I  wou ld  need t ime to  read i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  beg your  pardon?  

MR GAMA :    I  am say ing  I  wou ld  need t ime to  read i t  and 

see what  i t  says .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Wel l ,  you have not  read i t?  

MR GAMA :    No,  no .   I  have not  read i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay.   So we can dea l  w i th  –  cou ld  10 

you do tha t  over  l uncht ime? 

MR GAMA :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then I  w i l l  dea l  w i th  tha t  a f te r  

lunch i f  tha t  i s  su i tab le .   Le t  me then take  you,  wh i ls t  we 

are  work ing  th rough these new documents ,  to  the  

Truham(?)  document .   I f  we can get  tha t  ou t  o f  the  way.   

That  you w i l l  f ind  a t  page 314.    

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Th is  i s  a  document  tha t  you have 

prov ided us  w i th  and i t  appears  tha t  the re  was an  20 

invest iga t ion  regard ing  a l legat ion  o f  p lag ia r ism.   I s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  tha t  i s  the  document  I  to ld  you about .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    That  i s  the  ins t i tu t ion  had done i t s  own  
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independent  invest iga t ion  o f  the  mat te r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And so  they were  invest iga t ing  

p lag ia r ism?  I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    They were  invest iga t ing  the  McK insey 

a l legat ions.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Oh,  I  see.   The f i rs t  parag raph:  

“ I  wou ld  l i ke  to  in fo rm you o f  the  ou tcome o f  

the  Truham(?)  Invest iga t ion  in to  the  a l legat ion  

o f  p lag ia r i sm aga ins t  you. . . ”  

MR GAMA :    As  a  resu l t  o f  the  McK insey –  remember,  the 10 

a l legat ion  was tha t  someone a t  McK insey had made input  

in to  my academic  work .   So what  they ca l l  i t  –  tha t  i s  o f  –  

as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t .   As  you read  tha t  document ,  i t  says  

tha t :  

“On 6  August  2018,  the  Truham(?)  o f f i ce  was 

made aware  o f  an  a l legat ion  o f  p lag ia r i sm 

aga ins t  you.   The source  o f  a l legat ion  on  the  

s ta tement  f rom the  g loba l  consu l t ing  f i rm,  

McK insey.  

We unders tand the  s ta tement  you have been 20 

made in  response to  p ress  and soc ia l  med ia  

coverage in  South  A f r i ca  on  the  mat te r. . . ”  

 And then they ta l k  about  the  s ta tement  wh ich  is  

c red i ted  to  a  McK insey spokesperson.   We have dea l t  w i th  

tha t  a t  length  a t  our  las t  d iscuss ion .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   So le t  us  go  to  the  dec is ion  or  

ou tcome.   That  i s  a t  the  foo t  o f  page 315.   I t  says  under  

the  head ing ,  Dec is ion  and Outcome:  

“A f te r  fu l l  cons idera t ion  o f  the  ev idence,  the 

Academic  Board  convened by  con ference ca l l  

on  29  May 2019 dur ing  wh ich  they  

unan imous ly  agreed tha t  no  ac t ion  be  taken a t  

th is  t ime due to  inconc lus ive  ev idence. . . ”  

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  i t  says .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then over  the  page:  

“However,  as  I  hope you cou ld  unders tand,  the  

Academic  Board  a lso  agreed tha t  Truham 

shou ld  reserve  the  r igh t  to  re -open the  

invest iga t ion  shou ld  the  South  A f r i can Po l ice  

invest iga t ion  prompted by  McK insey,  

Sect ion  34(1)  one f i l i ng ,  y ie ld  a  f ina l  repor t  

wh ich  inc ludes incu lpa tory  ev idence spec i f i c  to  

your  Capstone Pro jec t  academic  work  no t  

p rev ious l y  ava i lab le  to  Truham’s  20 

Invest iga t ion . . . ”  

 Cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  jus t  want  to  ask  you a  few 

quest ions about  the  next  pa ragraph.  
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“ In  mak ing  th is  dec i s ion ,  the  Academic  Board  

spec i f i ca l l y  no ted  ev idence re la ted  to  

Ms Jacky Vermose(? )  ro le  in  the  pro jec t  and 

cons idered whether  o r  no t  her  cont r ibu t ions  

were  in  v io la t i on  o f  Truham’s  po l i cy  on  

ed i to r ia l  ass i s tance. . . ”  

 So I  th ink  prev ious l y  they had spoken about  the 

fac t  tha t  a  woman ass i s ted  you to  some exten t  w i th  the  

ed i t ing .   I s  tha t  then her  name,  Jacky Vermose?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then the  next  sentence says:  

“They a l so  no ted ev idence re la t ing  to  

Mr  Spencer  Horne,  any ro le  he  may have 

p layed and cons ide red whether  o r  no t  he  

ass is ted  in  any way tha t  wou ld  have been in  

v io la t ion  o f  Truham’s  po l i c ies . . . ”  

 Who is  Mr  Spencer  Horne?  

MR GAMA :    Horne is  a  McK insey Consu l tan t  tha t  was  

work ing  w i th  SAGA.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  what  ro le  d id  he  p lay?  20 

MR GAMA :    No,  tha t  was a  document  tha t  he  sent  to  us .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .    

MR GAMA :    Which  was a  research  document  tha t  was –  I  

th ink  i t  was e i ther  a  Pr icewaterhouse or  McK insey  

document .   Some research  tha t  was re la ted  to  what  we are  
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do ing ,  to  say he  cou ld  a lso  look a t  th is  as  par t  o f  what  he  

wou ld  c i te  i f  you  thought  i t  was re levant .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now I  want  to  take  you to  the  JZ 

Foundat ion  documents .    

MR GAMA :    I  do  no t  th ink  we can d iscuss those ,  these 

documents  tha t  I  have asked fo r  tha t  I  have not  ye t  

rece ived.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR GAMA :    Bu t  we can i f  you w ish .   Maybe I  can then  te l l  

you . . . [ in te rvenes ]   10 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

MR GAMA :    . . .a t  tha t  po in t  i f  i t  has  go t  a  bear ing  o r  no t  on  

us .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  le t  me dea l  w i th  tha t  in  

fa i rness to  you.   Yesterday,  the  doc –  you are  r igh t .   You 

asked fo r  cer ta in  documents  and  we made a  request  on  

Transnet .   What  we rece ived yesterday and I  do  no t  know i f  

you have seen i t .   I s  a  s ta tement  by  Amverno Makungha.   

Have you seen tha t?   I f  you  go to  page 338,  r igh t  a t  the  

back.   Perhaps I  can take  you th rough i t  f i rs t  because what  20 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    338? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    338.   I  th ink  i t  i s  the  second las t  

page,  Mr  Gama.    

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    I t  i s  headed –  and i t  i s  a  shor t  

document .   So le t  me take you th rough i t  and then we can 

work  backwards.   I t  says”  

“Response to  the  jud ic ia l  serv ice  commiss ion  

inqu i r i ng  on  s ta te  capture  on  Transnet  suppor t  

o f  the  fo rmer  Pres ident ,  Jacob Zuma’s  

events . . . ”  

 And she then se ts  about  answer ing  the  quest ions  

or  the  th ings tha t  you had asked fo r.   F i r s t l y,  quest ion :   

The p rog ramme for  the  Youth  Day event .   She says tha t :  10 

“Transnet ’s  Corpora te  A f fa i rs  sent  a  

rep resenta t i ve  to  suppor t  the  event  and fo r  

mon i to r i ng  i f  the  event  took p lace.  

Hard  copy programmes a re  d i s t r ibu ted  on the  

day o f  the  event .  

Corpora te  A f fa i r s  does not  have cop ies . . . ”  

 The next  quest ion  tha t  was posed or  document  

tha t  was asked fo r  -  was the  repor t  f rom Transne t  Group 

Communica t ion  on  the  funct ion .  

 She says:  20 

“Transnet  rece ived pub l i c i t y  th rough the  event  

s ince  Corpora te  A f fa i rs  ensured tha t  such 

events  shou ld  have the  Transnet  logo fea tured  

on the  brand ing  mater ia l s  such  as  banners ,  

p rogrammes,  inc lud ing  on  p lasma screens  
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used in  the  events ,  p rogrammes and banners .  

Transnet  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I  can  see the  document .   I  do  no t  th ink  there  

is  a  need fo r  us  to  read the  who le  th ing  and maybe you can 

ask  what  you wan t  to  ask .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  th rough i t ,  i f  I  

may?  

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    She goes on to  say:  

“Transnet  was a lso  recogn ised  dur ing  the  10 

programme as one o f  the  donors .  

Most  o f  the  t imes when I  a t tended,  the  event  

wou ld  be  we l l -a t tended w i th  s t rong media  

coverage. . . ”  

 Then you had asked about  any photography f rom 

the  a forement ioned funct ion .   She says tha t :  

“Corpora te  A f fa i rs  d id  no t  p rocure  the  serv i ces  

o f  a  photographer  fo r  these events .  

The prominent  depar tment  tha t  captured the  

event  was co l leagues f rom the  Government  20 

Communica t ion  and In fo rmat ion  System. . . ”  

MR GAMA :    Sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh,  th rough you,  Cha i r.   In  

any –  we have been to ld  tha t  the re  were  – there  was an 

SABC v ideo or  someth ing  o f  tha t  na ture .   So we wanted a  

v ideo on the  pho tography because –  ja ,  they were  say ing  
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tha t  there  is  somebody tha t  they cou ld  no t  see 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    . . . in  s i t t ing  on  a  tab le  somewhere .   So I  

thought  I  wou ld  ass i s t  the  Commiss ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    . . . in  te rms o f  ident i f y ing  tha t  person.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    . . .bu t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  tha t  wou ld  be  impor tan t .  10 

MR GAMA :    Bu t  tha t  be  v ideo has not  been fo r thcoming.   

So i f  we can be g iven tha t  v ideo . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    . . .one can be ab le  to  ass is t  the  Commiss ion  in  

te rms o f  who tha t  person was.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.   I s  tha t  a  v ideo tha t  Transnet ,  as  

fa r  you know,  shou ld  have o r  SABC? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Wel l ,  Cha i r,  we w i l l  come to  the 

v ideo now.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  is  an  a f f idav i t  on  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR GAMA :    The Commiss ion  has go t  the  v ideo.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So in  the  documents  tha t  was g iven 
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to  Mr  Gama,  i t  inc ludes tha t  a f f idav i t  on  –  someone 

ac tua l l y  looked a t  the  v ideo.   And then hav ing  rece ived  

those documents ,  he  then made  a  request  fo r  cer ta in  

fu r ther  documents  and one o f  those requests  was any  

photography.   So we have a  v ideo ,  as  I  unders tood  i t ,  th is  

re la tes  to  photography.    

 Then what  th is  lady  goes on to  dea l  w i th . . .   

Sor ry,  i f  I  cou ld  jus t . . .   Quest ion(?)  fu l l (? )  repor t  on  

Ms Anya . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  Youth  Day event  in  re la t ion  to  

rep resented Transnet ,  the  a foresa id  event .   Wel l ,  she 10 

seems to  have answered tha t .   She  says:  

“The a t tendees a t  the  Annua l  P res ident ia l  Go l f  

Cha l lenge were  i nv i ted  by  the  Depar tment  o f  

Pub l ic  Serv ices  and Admin is t ra t ion  as  the  

coord ina t ing  depar tment .  

The Corpora te  A f fa i rs  Depar tment  was 

respons ib le  fo r  the  brand ing  par t  o f  the  event .  

The a t tendees  were  inv i ted  th rough the  

Coord ina t ing  Depar tment . . . ”  

 So wou ld  tha t  been the  la tes t  document?   Le t  us  go  20 

back to  the  documents  tha t  you were  g iven on the  6  Apr i l  

wh ich  then gave  r i se  to  your  request  tha t  we have dea l t  

w i th .   Those documents  we  f ind  commencing  a t  page  

250.16 and,  Mr  Gama,  to  shor ten  my examinat ion  o f  you,  I  

am go ing  to  take  you to  what  I  cons ider  to  be  the  key  
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documents ,  they  are  a l so  no t  in  per fec t  chrono log ica l  

o rde r.    

 Le t  us  s ta r t  w i th  page 250.53.   You w i l l  see  tha t ,  i f  

one t racks  the  chrono logy,  th ings  seems to  have  begun 

w i th  th is  request  fo r  donat ions towards the  Jacob G Zuma 

Foundat ion  by  th is  01 .12  on the  3  January  2015.   Do you 

see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  was  addressed to  you and i t  

says  in  the  f i rs t  paragraph:  10 

“On beha l f  o f  H is  Exce l lency,  the  Pres ident  o f  the  

Repub l ic  o f  South  A f r i ca ,  Mr  Jacob Zuma,  we wou ld  

l i ke  to  o f fe r  you in  your  capac i ty  as  Act ing  CEO of  

Transnet  the  oppor tun i ty  to  cont r i bu te  towards the  

Jacob G Zuma Foundat ion  Youth  Day event  wh ich  is  

to  be  he ld  a t  the  Durban ICC on Saturday 20 June 

2015. ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I f  you  then go to  page 51 you w i l l  20 

see tha t  there  is  memorandum dated the  8  June 2015 

wh ich  you s igned  on the  12  June 2015,  tha t  you see a t  the  

foo t  o f  page 52 and u l t imate ly  wha t  was approved was the  

recommendat ion  a t  paragraph 12:  
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“ I t  i s  recommended tha t  the  Act ing  GCE approves  

fo r  Transnet :  

1 .  To  pay a  donat ion  towards the  Jacob G Zuma 

Foundat ion  Youth  Day event . ”  

Goes on to  desc r ibe  i t .  

2 .  That  co rpora te  and pub l i c  a f fa i r s  coord ina tes   

Transnet ’s  par t i c i pa t ion  inc lud ing  b rand ing .  

3 .  Act ing  GCE recommends s takeho lders  to  a t tend 

the  event . ”  

Do you see tha t?  10 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  i s  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Gama,  can I  ask  th is  

quest ion?  I  expected tha t  th is  recommendat ion  wou ld  a lso  

recommend the  amount  o f  the  donat ion  tha t  they were  

recommending tha t  you shou ld  –  tha t  Transnet  shou ld  g ive  

–  bu t  I  do  no t  see on the  recommendat ion  –  I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  someone  in  the  …[ in tervenes]  

MR GAMA:    Jus t  two l ines  above tha t ,  under  f inanc ia l  

imp l ica t ions,  they have wr i t ten  an  amount  there ,  20 

Cha i rperson.   Okay,  no  maybe i t  i s  jus t  the  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Paragraph 10.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  I  can see 10,  I  d id  no t  see i t  be fore ,  

I  can see 10 now.   Maybe i t  i s  jus t  the  use o f  the  ar t i c le  “a ”  

in  the  recommendat ion ,  to  p ledge  “a”  donat ion  as  opposed 
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to  the  donat ion  wh ich  is  ment ioned  above.   Okay,  bu t  the  – 

your  unders tand ing  is  tha t  the  recommendat ion  was tha t  

you shou ld ,  as  Act ing  Group CEO of  Transnet ,  donate  tha t  

amount  tha t  i s  wr i t ten  in  paragraph  10.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  tha t  you s ign  on  the  12  June 

2015.   I f  I  cou ld  then ask  you to  go  to  a  le t te r  wr i t ten  to  

Securus(?)  on  tha t  day.   That  you  f ind  a t  page 49.   There  

you w i l l  see  …[ in tervenes]  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 49?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    49 ,  yes ,  Cha i rperson.   There  they –  

you wr i te  back to  them:  

“Thank you fo r  inv i t ing  Transnet  to  suppor t…”  

E tce tera .  

“We conf i rm tha t  Transnet  w i l l  par tner  w i th  your  

foundat ion  and p ledge a  donat ion  o f  500 000 and 

my co l league…”  

A lady we have dea l t  w i th  o r  whose memo we have dea l t  

w i th .  20 

“…wi l l  in te rac t  w i th  your  o f f i ce . ”  

And you s ign  tha t  on  the  12  June 2015.   Cor rec t .  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then i f  I  can  take  you p lease to  

page 26.   So tha t  i s  12  June.   On page 26 one  f inds  an  
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invo i ce  f rom the  Jacob G Zuma Foundat ion  da ted  the  17  

June re f lec t ing  an  amount  due o f  R500 000 and i t  i s  s ign  

p .p .  on  beha l f  o f  Ms Dudu Myen i  the  then execut ive  

Cha i rperson o f  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion ,  i s  tha t  

cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then the  event  p resumably  we 

know occurs  on  the  20  June.   I f  I  cou ld  jus t  take  you to  

what  happens a f te r  tha t .   Would  you p lease go to  page 28?  

MR GAMA:    28?  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    28 ,  yes .   Here  is  a  memorandum tha t  

i s  addressed to  you dated the  30  Ju l y  2015.   I f  you  go to  

page 29 you w i l l  see  tha t  you s igned i t ,  I  w i l l  j us t  ask  you  

to  conf i rm,  on  the  4  August  2015.   Would  you conf i rm tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  you were  approv ing ,  i f  I  

read th is  cor rec t l y,  Mr  Gama,  was the  recommendat ion  tha t  

i t  i s  recommended tha t  the  Act ing  GCE ass ign  the  a t tached 

sponsorsh ip /dona t ion  cont rac t  o r  the  Jacob G  Zuma 

Foundat ion ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  20 

MR GAMA:    The cont rac t ,  yes .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  the  cont rac t  was ente red in to  

a f te rwards.  

MR GAMA:     Cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now tha t  cont rac t  you f ind  a t  page –  
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o r  le t  us  ca l l  i t  an  agreement  a t  page 30 and you w i l l  see  

a t  page 32,  c lause 1 .9 ,  there  is  the  donat ion  o f  500 000.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry  you shou ld  go  to  30  and then  

you move onto  another  page,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

ADV PRETORIUS SC:    Yes,  the  agreement  commences a t  

page 30 and I  had taken Mr  Gama to  page 32.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Where  a t  c lause 1 .9  there  i s  

re fe rence to  the  R500 000,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then i f  I  cou ld  take  you p lease to  

page 34 a t  c lause  7 .2 :  

“The Jacob G Zuma Foundat ion  Youth  Day event :   

(a )  1  x  tab le  o f  10  Transnet  guests  a t  the  event .  

(b )  The Act ing  GCE wi l l  be  seated a t  the  main  

tab le  w i th  the  hos t ,  H is  Exce l lency Pres ident  G 

Jacob Zuma.  

(c )  An oppor tun i ty  fo r  Act ing  GCE to  address the  

honoured guests  and s tudent . ”  

That  i s  what  you were  ge t t ing  fo r  –  in  par t  fo r  your  20 

R500 000,  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then a t  9 .1 :  

“For  th i s  du ra t ion  o f  th is  ag reement  Transnet  sha l l  

be  named as a  sponsor  and/or  donor  on  a l l  pub l i c i t y  
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mater ia l  o r  med ia  re la ted  to  th is  agreement  wh ich  

sha l l  inc lude media  in te rv iews,  newspaper  a r t i c l es ,  

f l yers ,  poste rs ,  banners ,  e tce te ra  . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  we have seen then tha t  on  the  4  

August  you autho r ised the  conc lus ion  o f  th is  cont rac t .  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now jus t  inc identa l l y,  w i th  re fe rence  

to  c lause 7 .2  d id  you a t tend th is  Youth  Day event ,  were  10 

you seated a t  the  tab le  w i th  Pres ident  Jacob Zuma? 

MR GAMA:    No,  the  Act ing  GCE a t tended.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry?  

MR GAMA:    The Act ing  GCE a t tended whoever  i t  was a t  

the  t ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Jus t  one second?  Are  you a t  page 42?  

What  page are  you?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    34 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    34?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.   A l r igh t ,  what  –  your  answer,  

Mr  Gama,  was tha t  the  Act ing  Group CEO of  Transnet  was 

s i t t ing  a t  the  tab le  w i th  Mr  Jacob Zuma? 

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  he  a t tended,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Were  you not  the  Act ing  Group  
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CEO at  the  t ime?  

MR GAMA:    Not  on  the  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  on  the  par t i cu la r  day?  Okay,  so  you 

were  a t  Act ing  Group CEO but  on  the  day somebody e lse  

was ac t ing  in  your  pos i t ion?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .   And who was tha t?  

MR GAMA:    And  tha t  i s  what  I  wanted to  t ry  and he lp  the  

Commiss ion  w i th .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.  10 

MR GAMA:    Because,  you know,  when peop le  say there  is  

an  ident i f ied  b lack  man s i t t ing  on  the  tab le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA:    Bu t  maybe I  cou ld  ident i f y  h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

MR GAMA:    Because he must  have been tha t  pe rson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  you cannot  remember  h is  name o r  

you can?  

MR GAMA:    No ,  no ,  I  jus t  suspect  tha t  i t  cou ld  i t  have  

been any o f  th ree  peop le  who  are  Durban-based Transnet  20 

peop le .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  bu t  you are  say ing  you yourse l f  d id  

no t  a t tend the  funct ion .  

MR GAMA:    No,  no ,  I  was out  o f  the  count ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   Mr  Myburgh?  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    So d id  you –  was someone wh i ls t  

you were  ou t  o f  the  count ry  then appo in ted  fo rmal ly  to  ac t  

as  the  Group Ch ie f  Execut ive ,  i t  wou ld  have been tha t  

person?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  wou ld  have been one o f  th ree  

peop le ,  who were  they?  

MR GAMA:    Mr  Soc ikwa was based in  Durban and  he was  

the  CE o f  Por t  Termina ls  so  I  suspect  tha t  i t  cou ld  have 

e i ther  been h im o r  h is  COO Mr  Gwala  or  one o f  h is  Genera l  10 

Managers  Mr  Nd lovu.   Those are  the  peop le  tha t  I  

remember  have  represented me in  one o r  the  o the r  

funct ions in  Durban when I  cou ld  no t  a t tend.    

CHAIRPERSON :    For  the  t ranscr ibers ,  Mr  Soc ikwa ,  wou ld  

be  S-o -c - i -k -a ,  i s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GAMA:    Soc i kwa,  S-o-c- i - k -w-a .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   S -o-c- i - k -w-a  and the  o ther  one  

wou ld  be  Mr  Gwala ,  G-w-a - l -a  and then Mr  Nd lovu and I  

th ink  eve rybody knows how to  spe l l  Nd lovu,  I  wou ld  hope 

so .   Ja .   Okay,  a l r igh t ,  Mr  Myburgh? 20 

ADV OLDWADGE SC :    Mr  Cha i r,  i f  you  w i l l  permi t  me.   I t  

seems a  l i t t le  mis lead ing  to  me,  th is  l ine  o f  quest ion ing  

and I  w i l l  te l l  you  why.   Mr  Myburgh f inds  i t  app ropr ia te  

s imp ly  to  re fe r  to  the  prov i s ions o f  c lause 4  o f  the  

agreement  and I  was wa i t ing  fo r  h im to  make a  re ference to  
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the  so -ca l led  annexure  A and i t  wou ld  no t  be  co r rec t  to  

s imp ly  suggest  to  Mr  Gama wi thout  mak ing  re ference the  

contents  o f  annexure  A and I  have tha t  le t te r  wh ich  seems 

to  const i tu te  annexure  A ,  what  th is  donat ion  was to  be  

used fo r  and so  i t  i s  no t  s imp le ,  tha t  one must  unders tand  

tha t  annexure  A is  what  i s  re fe r red  to  in  c lause 4 .   So i f  Mr  

Myburgh is  no t  aware  o f  the  ex is tence o f  the  le t ter  wh ich  

const i tu tes  annexure  A ,  I  am happy to  g ive  i t  to  h im,  bu t  in  

fa i rness to  Mr  Gama because you see,  annexure  A makes i t  

c lea r  what  tha t  donat ion  was a imed a t .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Annexure  A  in  the  bund le  tha t  you are  

ta lk ing  about?  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :    Mr  Cha i r,  i t  i s  annexure  A to  th is  

very  agreement .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :    And in  fa i rness tha t  i s  wha t  ought  

to  be  pu t  to  Mr  Gama.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l  …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :    I f  Mr  Myburgh does not  do  i t  then I  

w i l l  do  i t  in  re -examinat ion .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  you can do  i t  in  re -examinat ion ,  le t  

us  a l low Mr  Myburgh to  run  h i s  quest ion ing  the  way he  

p lans to .   He might  be  tend ing  to  re fer  to  annexure  A la te r  

than now,  in  te rms o f  t im ing .   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank  you.   I  unders tand my  
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learned f r i end says he  has  annexure  A .   Perhaps i t  i s  

someth ing  tha t  I  can a lso  ge t  f rom h im.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  i t  i s  no t  here? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  luncht ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV OLDWADGE SC :    Par t  o f  the  Commiss ion ’s  bund le ,  

Mr  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  le t  us  cont inue,  Mr  Myburgh .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.   A l r igh t ,  so  tha t  was  

on the  4  August .   I f  we go to  page 28 –  so r ry,  we have  10 

dea l t  w i th  28 .   I f  you  go to  page 25 you w i l l  see  then tha t  

a lso  on  the  4  August  you approved tha t  payment ,  i s  tha t  

r igh t?  

MR GAMA:    Page 20…? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Page 25,  so  you approved the  

payment  o f  the  R500 000 on the  4  August .  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  we go to  page 40  you w i l l  

see  tha t  the  cont rac t  i s  s igned on  the  13  August ,  bu t  i t  i s  

no t  s igned by  you .   Do you recogn ise  who s igned tha t?  20 

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  i t  i s  s igned by  –  i t  says  M Sekonye la ,  the  

genera l  manager  in  the  Opera t ing  Pub l ic  A f fa i r s .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then  f ina l l y  to  conc lude the  

chrono logy,  on  the  19  August ,  i f  you  cou ld  go  p lease to  

page 24,  payment  i s  then e f fec ted .  
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MR GAMA:    Page 20…? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    24 ,  Mr  Gama.   Conf i rm tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  can see i t ,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now I  want  to  take  you to  the  

a f f idav i t  tha t  you f ind  a t  page 16.  

MR GAMA:    One  s ix?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    One s i x .   The a f f idav i t  o f  S imph iwe 

Madla la ,  a  fo rens ic  invest iga to r  w i th  the  Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And tha t  i s  S imph iwe?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mad la la .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Mad la la ,  ja .   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Forens ic  invest iga to r  w i th  the 

Commiss ion  and he says a t  pa rag raph 3 :  

“The  pu rpose o f  th is  a f f idav i t  i s  to  record  the  

ana lys is  conducted on the  v ideo  foo tage prov ided 

by  the  SABC to  the  Commiss ion  re la t ing  to  the  20  

June 2015 Youth  Day event  o rgan ised by  the  JGZ 

Foundat ion . ”  

And then i f  I  cou ld  jus t  take  you  to  a  few paragraphs o f  

th is .   A t  paragraph 7 .2 ,  says tha t :  20 

“ In  ins tances where  the  pod ium appears  the  foo tage 

shows the  person or  persons who addressed the  

event  w i th  the  background JGZ Foundat ion  logos  

appear ing  beh ind  then. ”  

7 .3   The fu l l  s tage f rom where  speakers  addressed the 
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aud ience i s  v i s ib le  on  the  foo tage.   I  can  conf i rm 

tha t  the  on ly  b rand ing  and logos v i s ib le  on  the  

s tage are  those  o f  the  Jacob Zuma Foundat ion .   

There  are  none fo r  Transnet .  

7 .4  The foo tage does not  show any Transnet  logo or  

o ther  b rand ing  anywhere  a t  the  event .  

7 .5  The foo tage shows a lmost  ha l f  o f  the  Pres ident ’s  

tab le .  

7 .6  A t  the  fo rmer  P res ident ’s  tab le  he  was seated next  

to  a  woman who I  am unab le  to  ident i f y  on  h i s  le f t  10 

s ide ,  p robab ly  the  fo rmer  Premier  o f  KZN,  Mr  Senzo 

Mchunu seated on the  r igh t  hand s ide .  

7 .7  I  cou ld  ident i f y  the  fo l low ing o the r  persons a t  what  

appears  to  be  a t  the  fo rmer  Pres ident ’s  tab le . ”  

And then he l i s ts  a ,  b ,  c  and d .  

7 .8  I  was not  ab le  to  ident i f y  Mr  Gama seated a t  what  

appears  to  be  the  fo rmer  Pres ident ’s  tab le  nor  

anywhere  e lse  on  the  foo tage.   I  am ab le  to  ident i f y  

Mr  Gama because I  have seen h im before  in  the  

med ia . ”  20 

So your  –  as  I  unders tand i t ,  your  answer  to  tha t  i s  tha t  the 

person who was Act ing  in  the  GCE in  your  s tead a t tended  

th is  funct ion ,  i s  tha t  co r rec t ,  Mr  Gama? 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:     
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7 .9  The foo tage shows th ree  gues t  speakers  who 

addressed the  event  inc lud ing  the  fo rmer  Pres ident ,  

Ms Duduz i le  Myen i  and Ms Bathab i le  D lamin i .   

Another  gent leman who I  cannot  ident i f y  fac i l i ta ted 

the  in t roduct ion  o f  s tudents  to  the  event .   Some o f  

the  s tudents  appeared on the  s tage and  i n te r  a l ia  

passed the i r  g ra t i tude to  the  fo rmer  Pres ident  and 

the  Foundat ion .   The foo tage does not  show Mr  

Gama address ing  the  event  on  tha t  day. ”  

Do you know whether  the  pe rson  who went  in  your  p lace  10 

wou ld  have addressed th is  event  as  you were  supposed to  

have done o f  as  the  Act ing  Ch ie f  Execut ive  was supposed  

to  have done?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  why I  asked fo r  a  repor t  f rom the  

corpo ra te  a f fa i r s  depar tment  o f  Transnet .   I  do  no t  know 

whethe r  –  what  Transnet  has g iven appears  to  look  l i ke  a  

repor t .   Normal ly  there  shou ld  be  a  repor t .   That  repor t  

wou ld  answer  those quest ions and unfor tunate ly,  I  had 

de legated tha t  to  some e lse ,  I  was not  ava i lab le  a t  tha t  

t ime.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    When somebody has been ac t ing  in  your  

pos i t ion  when you a re  ou t  o f  the  count ry  fo r  whatever  

per iod  wou ld  they have repor ted  back to  you on a  funct ion  

such as  th is  to  say I  a t tended tha t  funct ion  on  your  beha l f  

o r  someth ing  l i ke  tha t  and i t  went  we l l ,  every th ing  went  in  
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acco rdance w i th  the  agreement  o r  wou ld  they no t?  

MR GAMA:    Normal ly  when …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  they wou ld  g ive  you a  repor t ,  fo r  

ins tance?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  when somebody has been ac t ing  they w i l l  

g ive  a  repor t  tha t  a lso  g i ves  you a  summary  o f  the 

s ign i f i can t  dec is ions tha t  they took.   So w i th in  tha t  contex t  

they wou ld  then a lso  g i ve  tha t  repor t .   A l l  o f  those types o f  

repor ts  wou ld  be  f ree ly  ava i lab le  a t  Transnet .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  f rom your  memory  you  cannot  10 

remember  whether  he  sa id  or  she sa id  he  o r  she was 

there?  He a t tended,  you canno t  remember,  you  wou ld  

need the  repor t  to  remind you.  

MR GAMA:    I  thought  the  repor t  wou ld  have ass i s ted  the  

Commiss ion .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA:    In  te rms o f  whatever  i t  i s  tha t  Commiss ion  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA:    Bu t  I  am not  sure  what  need le  in  the  haystack  20 

we a re  look ing  fo r  here .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Ja ,  bu t  what  I  am ask ing  is ,  f rom 

memory  you cannot  remember  whether  you to ld  you tha t  

they in tended or  no t?  

MR GAMA:    No,  they wro te  in  the  repor t  tha t  the  Act ing  
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GCE a t tended.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay.  

MR GAMA:    They d id  wr i te  in  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

MR GAMA:    So  tha t  i s  why I  asked fo r  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  no ,  a  request  –  tha t  request  has 

been made,  Mr  Myburgh,  to  ge t  the  repor t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    We requested tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then what  we got  back was th is  10 

–  e f fec t i ve ly  a  repor t ,  answer  to  quest ions by  Nomvela  

Makunga.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    She be ing  the  co rpora te  a f fa i rs  

person who says  tha t  she a t tended th is  funct ion  or  th is  

Youth  Day even t .   She was asked who a t tended and  

rep resented Transnet .   She gave an answer,  she does not  

say  Mr  Gama d id  and nor  does she say tha t  h is  

rep lacement ,  fo r  want  o f  a  descr ip t ion ,  d id .   So Mr  Gama’s  

request  was made on Transnet ,  DCJ,  and th i s  i s  what  we  20 

got  f rom her,  herse l f .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes ,  yes .   Okay,  no ,  tha t  i s  f ine .   I  

guess tha t  maybe she shou ld  be  asked to  depose to  an  

a f f idav i t  and answer  spec i f i c  quest ions or  she shou ld  be  

ca l led ,  i f  poss ib le ,  because i t  shou ld  no t  take  long.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  in  the  l igh t  o f  what  Mr  Gama 

has sa id ,  fu r ther  invest iga t ion  is  requ i red .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And cer ta in ly,  i f  he  can ass i s t  us  by  

hav ing  a  look a t  the  v ideo foo tage we can a l so  –  I  p resume 

tha t  can a l so  be  ar ranged.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  yes .   Maybe what  you can a lso  do ,  

Mr  Gama,  i f  you  can te l l  us  now,  the  names o f  the  th ree  

poss ib le  persons ,  Mr  Soc ikwa,  what  h is  name i s  and Mr  

Gwala  and Mr  Nd lovu so  tha t ,  i f  need be,  the  Commiss ion  10 

can t ry  and get  in  touch w i th  them to  see who o f  them was  

ac t ing  in  your  p lace.  

MR GAMA:    Ja .   Cha i r,  maybe to  avo id  specu la t ion  

because I  a lso  do  not  want  to  specu la te  l i ke  o the r  peop le  

who come to  the  Commiss ion  here  and specu la te .   I f  the  

Commiss ion  cou ld  prov ide  me wi th  the  v ideo I  cou ld  be  o f  

ass is tance.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Immedia te ly?  

MR GAMA:    The  Commiss ion  has  go  the  v ideo f rom which  

Mr  Mad la la  wro te  th is  a f f idav i t?  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.   He sa id  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    How qu ick ly  can tha t  be  done,  Mr  

Myburgh do you know? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  beg your  pardon?  
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CHAIRPERSON :    How qu ick ly  can tha t  be  done,  do  you 

know? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  do  no t ,  I  was prov ided,  as  I  have 

a l ready sa id ,  w i th  th is  in fo rmat ion  by  the  TNA s t ream.   I  

can make enqu i r ies  in  re la t ion  to  tha t  over  luncht ime.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  in  any event  Mr  Gama has g i ven 

the  th ree  names a l ready,  as  I  unders tand i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  le t  us  cont inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t  and then a t  parag raph 7 .11  i t  10 

says in  the  las t  l ine  tha t :  

“Mr  S iyabonga Gama was never  in t roduced as  a  

guest  a t  the  even t . ”  

Wel l ,  I  p resume f rom what  you  are  te l l ing  us  tha t  tha t  

makes sense,  sub jec t  to  invest iga t ion .  Can I  then 

…[ in tervenes]  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  Mr  Gama was out  o f  the  count ry  on  tha t  

day.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Whereabouts  were  you?  

MR GAMA:    Sor ry?  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Whereabouts  were  you?  

MR GAMA:    Wel l ,  p robab ly  w i th  some comrades in  S t  

Petersburg .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t ,  thank you.   Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cou ld  I  then,  be fore  I  go  to  a  more  
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substan t ia l  top ic  le t  me,  wh i ls t  we are  dea l ing  w i th  the  new 

documents ,  le t  us  go  to  the  one r igh t  a t  the  end,  page 340.   

Th is  i s  an  a f f idav i t  f rom Susan A lber tyn ,  dea l ing  w i th  your  

cost  payment  and  she says a t  pa ragraph 5 :  

“Transnet ’s  f inance depar tment  searched the  

Transnet  records  and requested  S tandard  Bank,  

Transnet ’s  bankers  a t  the  t ime,  to  search  i ts  

records  fo r  any payment  to  Transnet  by  Mr  Gama in  

December  2009.   No ev idence o f  any payment  cou ld  

be  found in  Transnet ’s  records  or  by  S tandard  10 

Bank. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    I  commented on th is  on  Monday but  I  can  

comment  aga in .   The bank cou ld  no t  go  back as  fa r  back as  

2009 in  te rms o f  i t s  records  so  i f  the  bank had been ab le  to  

go  back we cou ld  have been ab le  to  f ind  tha t  bu t  the  bank  

s ta tements  tha t  I  cou ld  ge t ,  I  th ink  they on ly  go  as  fa r  back  

as  November  2010 wh ich  is  a  year  tha t  we cou ld  no t  ge t .   

 In  as  fa r  as  Transnet  records  maybe i t  i s  one o f  

those misce l laneous amounts  tha t  i t  i s  hard l y  ab le  to  see 20 

because i t  i s  p robab ly  too  smal l  fo r  Transnet  bu t  i f  we had  

gone to  my bank s ta tements  i t  wou ld  be  eas i l y  found .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   So le t  us  then tu rn  to  the  

3 .3  no t ice  tha t  was issued to  you in  re la t ion  to  Ms Gigaba ’s  

ev idence.   P lease wou ld  you go to  page 124?  Are  you  
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there?  

MR GAMA:    250.124?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    250.124,   yes .   So you were  issues 

w i th  th is  3 .3  no t ice  and a t tached to  tha t  was the  f i rs t  page  

o f  Ms Gigaba ’s  a f f idav i t  and then the  por t ion  re levant  to  

you,  those you f ind  a t  page 128.    

Now the  f i rs t  pa rag raph o f  re levance is  paragraph 31.2 .   

What  i s  re f lec ted  there  is  tha t  she says tha t  Mr  G igaba 

a lso  to ld  me tha t  S iyabonga Gama wou ld  be  appo in ted  as  

the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  o f  Transnet  be fo re  the 10 

appo in tment  was made.    Now Cha i rperson you w i l l  cor rec t  

me i f  my reco l lec t ion  is  wrong,  I  th ink  you cou ld  hear  th is  

w i tness be t te r  than I  cou ld  la te  on  Monday,  bu t  as  I  reca l l  

her  ev idence on quest ion ing  by  you Cha i rperson she  

ind ica ted  tha t  th is  was ac tua l l y  supposed to  be  a  re ference  

to  Mr  Gama be ing  re ins ta ted  as  the  Ch ie f  Execut ive  Off i cer  

a t  TFR.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  tha t  i s  wha t  she c la r i f ied  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  don ’ t  know i f  you want  to  comment  

on  tha t  a t  a l l ,  so  her  ev idence was  tha t  she had heard  tha t  20 

you wou ld  be  re ins ta ted  before  you  were ,  I  th ink  tha t  i s  her  

c r i sp  summary,   have you got  any comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    I  don ’ t  know Cha i r,  I  mean what  i s  i t  tha t  I  

cou ld  comment  on ,  I  mean I  was not  there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then a t  pa ragraph 31.3  Mr  

G igaba a l so  to ld  me tha t  he  in tended to  speak to  Mr  Gama 

to  appo in t  h is  s i s te r,  Ms Gugu Gigama,  to  Transnet .   To  the 

best  o f  my knowledge Ms Gugu Gigama was appo in ted  and 

remains  in  the  employ  o f  Transnet .   Do you want  to  

comment  on  tha t?   

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  don ’ t  know.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  beg your  pardon?  

MR GAMA:    I  don ’ t  know about  th is ,  I  don ’ t  know anyth ing  

about  th is .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .   Cou ld  I  ask  you  p lease  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  you were  read ing  f rom 

paragraph –  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    31 .3  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Do you know a  person ca l l ed  Gugu 

Gigaba by  any chance?  

MR GAMA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    You don ’ t  know her.    Were  you ever  

approached by  anybody to  appo in t  o r  fac i l i ta te  the  20 

appo in tment  o f  Mr  G igaba ’s  s is te r  to  Transnet ,  o r  TFR? 

MR GAMA:    No.  

CHAIRPERSON:    No,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  le t ’s  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  you wou ld  no t  be  in  a  pos i t ion  to  say 
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whethe r  o r  no t  such a  person was employed by  Transnet  o r  

a  d iv i s ion  o f  Transnet  a t  some s tage or  anothe r,  you wou ld  

no t  know tha t?  

MR GAMA:    No,  i t  i s  no t  in  my persona l  knowledge Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  ja ,  ja ,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  we l l  le t ’s  go  p lease to  page  

250.104.  

MR GAMA:   104.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  on page  104 on the  face  o f  i t  you 

f ind  th ree  emai ls ,  s ta r t ing  a t  the  bo t tom,  f rom Gugu Gigaba 10 

dated the  15 t h  o f  Apr i l  2016 i t  seems to  be  addressed to  a 

person hav ing  the  emai l  address  Nkunez i  G igaba  and i t  

says  p lease f ind  a t tached the  CV as requested,  do  you see  

tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then the  next  emai l  i s  f rom Malus i  

G igaba and you see i t  i s  the  address Nkunez i  G igaba so  

presumably  the  f i rs t  emai l  went  to  h im.   The second  emai ls  

i s  Ma lus i  G igaba  dated the  25 t h  o f  June to  Mr  –  i s  tha t  Mr  

Buthe lez i ,  Ha lomol i  Buthe lez i  was  he your  Ch ie f  Opera t ing  20 

Off i cer?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  beg your  pardon?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  says  he re  w i th  the  i ssue –  
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cou ld  you t rans la te  tha t  fo r  us?  

MR GAMA:    No,  no ,  no  I  am not  your  t rans la tor  Mr  

Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps you cou ld  ass is t  

Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  i f  Mr  Gama won ’ t  ass i s t  “herewi th  

the  issue [ speak ing  in  vernacu lar ]  we l l  I  guess techn ica l l y  

we shou ld  ge t  a  t rans la to r  who w i l l  t rans la te  i t  bu t  

bas ica l l y  i t  say ing  here  is  the  issue tha t  we ta lked about  o r  

tha t  I  ta lked abou t .   Okay.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    And ashange is  wr i t ten  there .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The issue we ta lked about  jus t  

inc identa l l y  Cha i rpe rson when I  was go ing  th rough these  

documents  w i th  the  invest iga tors  one o f  them typed these 

words in to  Goog le  t rans la te  and there  appeared “ the  issue  

we had ta lked about ” .  

CHAIRPERSON:    [ laugh ing ]   Okay,  ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r igh t  so  tha t  i s  an  emai l  f rom Mr  

G igaba to  your  CEOO,  Mr  Buthe lez i  and then what  you see 20 

a t  the  top  is  an  emai l  f rom Rav i  Naya who was he? 

MR GAMA:    He was the  CEO of  TFR.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The CFO?  And he wr i tes  to  Mr  

Buthe lez i  and re  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh he was the  CEO of  TFR? 
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MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A f te r  he  had moved to  Group  CEO of  

Transnet?  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And he wr i tes  to  Mr  Buthe lez i  and he 

says “ thanks Ch ie f ” ,  do  you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now do I  unders tand you to  say you  

know noth ing  about  the  fac t  tha t  your  COO was dea l ing  10 

w i th  th is?  

MR GAMA:   No I  don ’ t .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  he  not  speak to  you about  i t? 

MR GAMA:    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i f  you go to  page 105 the re  

is  a  request  to  appo in t  Ms Gigaba to  a  pos i t ion ,  i s  that  

cor rec t?   I t  i s  a  b i t  d i f f i cu l t  to  read but  the  purpose o f  the  

memo says,  the  purpose o f  the  submiss ion  is  to  request  

the  approva l  o f  the  Ch ie f  Opera t ing  Off i ce r,  Transnet ,  to  

appo in t  and I  p resume tha t  i s  Ms Gigaba,  to  the  pos i t ion  o f  20 

Manager  Cont inuous Improvement  Facto r  f rom 1  February  

2017 v ia  –  and  I  don ’ t  know what  i s  m iss ing  there ,  

appo in tment  p rocess,  do  you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And what  the  recommendat ion  
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re f lec t s  a t  page 106,  paragraph 12 ,  i t  i s  recommended tha t  

the  Ch ie f  Opera t ing  Off i ce r  and here  you see i t  be t te r,  

approve the  appo in tment  o f  Ms Gigaba to  the  pos i t ion  o f  

Manager  Cont inuous Improvement  in  the  Organ isa t iona l  

Deve lopment  &  Per fo rmance Depar tment  v ia  the  Execut ive  

Appo in tment  Process,  sub jec t  to  the  ou tcome o f  the 

necessary  Transnet  Human Cap i ta l  p rocesses.  

 Now what  i s  the  Execut ive  Appo in tment  Process Mr  

Gama?  On the  face  o f  i t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA:    That ’s  where  they appo in t  persons w i thout  10 

hav ing  to  go  th rough the  ex te rna l  adver t i s i ng  p rocess.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  i t  i s  no t  a  compet i t i ve  process in  

o ther  words?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  i t  was where  i f  fo r  ins tance you f ind  

somebody w i th  a  par t i cu la r  f lee t  o f  sk i l l s  tha t  you have  

been look ing  fo r  and you have go t  the  CV and i t  ta lks  to  

what  you want  you can then do i t  v ia  tha t  t ype o f  p rocess.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Where  is  i t  Mr  Myburgh,  where  does i t  

say,  what  does i t  say?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So  a t  the  end o f  parag raph 12,  a t  20 

page 106 i t  ta lks  o f  the  Execut i ve  appo in tment  p rocess 

Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    I t  i s  recommended tha t  the  Ch ie f  

Opera t ing  Off i cer  Transnet  approve the  appo in tmen t  o f  Ms  

Gugu Gigaba to  the  pos i t ion  o f  Manager  Cont inuous  
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Improvement  in  the  Organ isa t iona l  Deve lopment  and  

Per fo rmance Depar tment  v ia  the  Execut ive  Appo in tment  

Process sub jec t  to  the  ou tcome o f  the  necessary  Transnet  

Human Cap i ta l  p rocesses.    Oh,  so  i t  i s  the  Execut ive  

Appo in tment  Process tha t  you were  ask ing  about?   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay so  Mr  Gama your  answer  i s  tha t  

tha t  i s  a  p rocess tha t  enab les  o r  tha t  d ispenses  w i th  a  

compet i t i ve  p rocess fo r  the  pos i t ion .  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  i t  d ispenses w i th  the  ex terna l  adver t i s ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  yes ,  bu t  in te rna l  adver t i s ing  does i t  

requ i re  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    You can s t i l l  i n te rv iew the  peop le  bu t  you use 

the  knowledge tha t  you have wh ich  is  the  CV in  te rms o f  

say ing ,  ident i f y ing  the  ta len t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  wha t  I  want  to  unders tand  

because you d idn ’ t  jus t  say  i t  d ispenses w i th  adver t i s ing ,  

you sa id  ex terna l  adver t i s ing ,  so  I  am t ry ing  to  see whethe r  

i t  doesn ’ t  requ i re  ex terna l  adver t i s ing  bu t  i t  does requ i re  

tha t  in te rna l l y  they shou ld  be  made you jus t  meant  and  20 

there  shou ld  be  compet i t ion  w i th in .  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  normal ly  bu t  i t  i s  no t  –  there  cou ld  be  

except ions,  normal ly  when you appo in t  peop le  ex terna l l y  

you wou ld  have exhausted the  in te rna l  adver t i s ing .  

CHAIRPERSON:    P rocesses ja ,  ja ,  okay so  genera l l y  
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speak ing  even w i th  th is  p rocess i t  i s  expected tha t  there  

wou ld  be  an exhaust ion  o f  in te rna l  compet i t ion .  

MR GAMA:   Ja.  

CHAIRPERSON:    And whether  you go outs ide  or  you don ’ t  

go  ou ts ide  bu t  there  wou ld  have been tha t  in te rna l  

compet i t ion .  

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR GAMA:    But  somet imes a l so  Cha i r  there  are  spec i f i c  

s t reams o f  ta len t  o r  capab i l i t y  wh ich  we know tha t  they are  10 

scarce  sk i l l s  l i ke  eng ineer ing  or  ce r ta in  . . . [ ind is t inc t ]  sk i l l s  

tha t  th rough the re  is  the  human resources peop le  are  

aware  tha t  those are  scarce  sk i l l s ,  fo r  ins tance i t  i s  d i f f i cu l t  

nowadays to  f ind  a  d iese l  mechan ic .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh.   I  thought  a t  some s tage there  were  

lo ts  o f  those in  South  A f r i ca .  

MR GAMA:    Yes  there  were  l o ts  bu t  there  has no t  been a  

lo t  o f  in take in  Techn ikons and those types o f  p laces fo r  

those k inds o f  sk i l l s  and then we have been promot ing  fo r  

ins tance tha t  we  w i l l  f ind  young peop le  who want  to  t ra in  20 

as  d iese l  mechan ics  because a  l o t  o f  the  young  peop le  

nowadays they want  to  use the  lap tops,  IT,  bu t  we s t i l l  

have d iese l  t ra ins  tha t  we w i l l  be  runn ing  fo r  the  next  30  

years  and i f  there  i sn ’ t  anyone who is  coming th rough i t  

becomes a  prob lem,  so  tha t  i s  why we s ta r ted  the  
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academies to  t ry  and dea l  w i th  these issues.  

CHAIRPERSON:    H ’m,  ja ,  so  you say the re  a re  –  there  

wou ld  be  cer ta in  sk i l l s  tha t  the  Human Resources 

Depar tment  fo r  example  wou ld  know are  d i f f i cu l t  to  f ind .  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    A re  you say ing  tha t  in  regard  to  those  

sk i l l s  then there  can be an appo in tment  w i thou t  even 

in te rna l  compet i t ion  or  were  you jus t  mak ing  the  po in t?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  there  can be an appo in tment  w i thout  even  

the  in te rna l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   10 

CHAIRPERSON:    In te rna l  compet i t ion .  

MR GAMA:   . . . compet i t ion  yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    On the  bas is  t ha t  we know these sk i l l s  

a re  scarce ,  I  guess tha t  they wou ld  know tha t  they are  no t  

ins ide  these sk i l l s ,  ja .  

MR GAMA:   Yes,  because a l l  the  t ime there ’s  an  aud i t  o f  

the  sk i l l s  tha t  t hey have and they know what  they are  

look ing  fo r.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay.    Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson I  see tha t  i t  one  o ’c lock ,  20 

perhaps th is  i s  a  conven ien t  t ime to  b reak.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay le t  us  take  the  lunch break  and we  

w i l l  resume a t  two o ’c lock .    

 We ad journ .  

REGISTRAR:   Al l  r i se .  
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INQUIRY ADJOURNS 

INQUIRY RESUMES 

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  le t  us  con t inue.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Gama cou ld  I  ask  you p lease jus t  

to  go  to  page 250.112.    You w i l l  see  tha t  Ms Gigaba was 

then employed in  a  le t te r  o f  appo in tment  o r  o f fe r  o f  

appo in tment  was  made to  her  on  the  26 t h  o f  January,  do 

you see tha t  a t  page 112?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do you know whethe r  she was then 10 

employed?  

MR GAMA:    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    D id  you eve r  meet  Gugu Gigaba? 

MR GAMA:    No,  I  do  no t  know her.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR GAMA:    I  never  met  he r.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  then  I  wou ld  l i ke  to  go  to  the  

Times L ive  ar t i c le  p lease and tha t  you w i l l  f ind…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    So  I  am sor ry,  so  Mr  Gama,  somebody 

who is  appo in ted  under  th is  p rocess tha t  we ta lked  about ,  20 

wh ich  does not  necessar i l y  requ i re  ou ts ide  adver t i sement ,  I  

th ink  tha t  i s  wha t  you sa id .   I f  i t  i s  somebody who  is  no t  

coming f rom wi th in  the  organ isa t ion ,  do  you know how they 

wou ld  normal ly  f ind  such a  person or  whether  the re  m ight  

be  somebody in  the  depar tment  who is  aware  tha t  there  i s  
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a  pos i t ion  tha t  requ i res  the  sk i l l s  and they know,  somebody  

has got  those sk i l l s  they ta lk  to  them or  do  you know 

whethe r  the  –  i t  is  a  s i tua t ion  where  peop le  jus t  wr i te  and 

say,  I  have got  th is  qua l i f i ca t ions  i f  there  i s  pos i t ion  fo r  

me.    

I  am jus t  wonder ing  i f  there  has been no  

adver t i sement  how somebody gets  to  know tha t  there  is  

such a  pos i t ion  in  a  b ig  o rgan isa t ions such as  Transnet  

and i t s  d i v is ions?  

MR GAMA:    No,  there  a re  many ways and in  te rms o f  how 10 

i t  cou ld  happen,  somet imes you get  re fe r ra ls ,  fo r  ins tance,  

when I  look  a t  th is  pa r t i cu la r  one,  i t  looks  l i ke  i t  i s  

someth ing  wh ich  was in  the  to ta l  qua l i t y  management  

space,  wh ich  is  the  l inks  s i x  s igma.    

I t  i s  a round improvement  o f  p rocesses and t ry ing  to  

make su re  tha t  you have less  waste ,  and a l l  o f  tha t ,  a t  

some po in t ,  i t  became a  very  impor tan t  aspect  in  te rms o f  

the  k ind  o f  work  tha t  they were  do ing ,  so  process 

improvement ,  con t inuous improvement  was key.   

And then there  were  a  lo t  o f  peop le  tha t  we were  20 

ab le  to  ge t  f rom outs ide  i t  and there  were  spec i f i c  

manufac tur ing  organ isa t ions tha t  were  ta rge ted,  l i ke  

NAMPAC,  the  brewer ies…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Which  cou ld  he lp  peop le  w i th  such  

th ings.  
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MR GAMA:    Which  had these k inds o f  sk i l l s  Mond i ,  Sapp i  

a l l  o f  those so  -  and then,  once  you had some o f  those 

peop le  who come in ,  some o f  them then recommended 

o thers .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR GAMA:    Tha t  they had worked w i th  to te  say look are  

you s t i l l  l ook ing  fo r  more  peop le ,  we a l so  know.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  a l r igh t  Mr  Myburgh.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  thank you.   I  wou ld  l i ke  to  

re tu rn  to  the  Times L i ve  ar t i c l e  tha t  you found  a t  page 

250.310.   Now Cha i rperson our  learned f r iends have  

prov ided us  w i th  a  copy o f  the  invo ice  tha t  we spoke about .   

Cou ld  I  hand –  and we have made cop ies ,  cou ld  I  hand i t  

up?  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  have put  handwr i t ten  pag ina t ion  as  

250.341.   So i t  w i l l  come r igh t  -  bu t  a t  the  end  o f  the 

bund le  we w i l l  obv ious ly  add i t  fo rmal ly  to  the  bund le  in  20 

due course .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  okay,  bu t  in  the  meant ime you sa id  

we must  go  to  what  page?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    310,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  thank you .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    250.310.   Mr  Gama we -  your  invo ice  

we have been prov ided w i th  w i l l  be  added to  the  bund le  

r igh t  a t  the  end,  you have a  copy in  f ron t  o f  you  do you 

want  to  say any th ing  about  i t  now before  we go to  the 

ar t i c le?  

MR GAMA:    No,  I  th ink  i f  you  look  a t  the  invo ice  i t  w i l l  say  

to  you,  i t  w i l l  show you a l l  o f  those numbers  and then a t  

the  end o f  the  bo t tom there  i t  w i l l  say  24 /01/16 wh ich  is  the  

da te  on  wh ich  I  le f t .   I t  w i l l  say  pa id ,  so  I  th ink  tha t  w i l l  

ind ica te  tha t  when I  le f t  tha t  p lace  I  pa id  fo r  i t ,  bu t  I  d id  10 

jus t  ask  the  hote l  to  send me a  copy and th is  i s  the  copy  

tha t  they have sent  because I  d id  no t  have a  copy.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Perhaps I  cou ld  jus t  -  and obv ious ly  

I  need to  s tudy th is  document  bu t  i f  you  compare  i t  to  328 

perhaps you cou ld  do  tha t  now.  

MR GAMA:    Three?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Three,  two,  e igh t .  

MR GAMA:    Twenty-e igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  see  tha t  i f  you  compare  328 to  th is  

document  on  the  r igh t  hand s ide ,  i t  ends a f te r  ra te .   So you  20 

do not  have a  p r in ted  on  date  nor  the  cash ie r,  nor  the  

page.   Does your  document  341 does i t  re f lec t  the  da te  

upon wh ich  i t  was  pr in ted?  

MR GAMA:    The date  when they p r in ted  i t?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  
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MR GAMA:    I  do  no t  see anyth ing  on  the  i nvo ice  i t se l f .   I t  

p robab ly  w i l l  be  in  the  emai l  tha t  they sent  to  me in  te rms  

o f  when they sen t  i t  to  me,  when I  requested fo r  i t .   I  do  

no t  see any da tes  there  i t  jus t  shows the  ar r i va l  da te ,  

a r r i va l  t ime and the  depar tu re  t ime.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t  we l l  le t  us  perhaps dea l  w i th  

tha t  in  the  contex t  o f  the  Times L ive  ar t i c le  a t  310.  

MR GAMA:    And  in  fac t  I  th ink  i t  is  s l igh t l y  d i f fe ren t  in  the 

sense tha t  on  tha t  -  on  the  o ther  one i t  jus t  says depar tu re  

I  th ink  i t  i s  jus t  a  custom number  they jus t  pu t  12 ,  here  i t  10 

says 823,  so  wh ich  wou ld  have been more  l i ve  document .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Sor ry,  what  d id  you say?  

MR GAMA:    I  am say ing  i f  you  look a t  the  one on 328  

versus 341 a t  depar tu re  the  on ly  d i f fe ren t  tha t  I  see the re  

is  tha t  the  t ime,  i t  has  go t  the  t ime as  we l l .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Ah .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Wel l  the  t imes fo r  depar tu re  a re  d i f fe ren t  

in  regard  to  the  two.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Bu t  the  t ime fo r  a r r i va l  seems to  be  the  20 

same on both .  

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  so  i f  we then go to  310 and I  

take  you th rough  th is  a r t i c le  i f  a  may and ask you  fo r  your  

comments  a long the  way.   So i t  s ta r ts  o f f  by  say ing  or  i t  i s  
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headed Transnet  CEO Duba i  ho te l  s tay,  how Gupta ’s  go t  

the  b i l l?  And i t  s ta r ts  o f f  by  say ing :  

“Two months be fo re  be ing  permanent ly  appo in ted  as  

Transnet  Group CEO S iyabonga Gama CEO en joyed 

a  two n igh t  s tay  a t  the  f i ve  s ta r  Obero i  Hote l  in  

Duba i  apparent ly  cour tesy  o f  the  Gupta  fami ly.   

Gama has conf i rmed meet ing  key  Gupta  L ieu tenan t  

Sa l im Essa dur ing  the  s tay  bu t  den ies  tha t  the  

Gupta ’s  pa id  fo r  h im. ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?   10 

MR GAMA:    Yes.   

“The leaks Gupta  emai ls  have revea led  a  book ing  

conf i rmat ion  ema i l  to  Gupta  owned Sahara  sys tems 

ch ie f  execut ive ,  Ash Chawla  under  Gama’s  name. ”  

We have seen tha t ,  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “Chawla  then fo rwarded the  emai l  to   

long- t ime Gupta  fami ly  assoc ia te  Essa,  who unt i l  

recent ly  was a  60% major i t y  shareho lder  o f  Tr i l l i an  

Cap i ta l  Par tners ,  f inanc ing  consu l t ing  f i rm tha t  20 

ne t ted  m i l l ions  in  cont rac ts  w i th  S ta te  owned 

ent i t ies  Transnet  and Eskom. ”  

Do you have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Comment  on  the  paragraph?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  I  suppose what  we have seen  
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i s  tha t  Chawla  then d id  fo rward  the  emai ls  to  Essa,  tha t  we 

have seen.  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  I  have seen tha t  the  fo rward ing  o f  the 

emai l .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “Tr i l l i an  was fo rmed when CEO Er ic   

Wood  broke away f rom h is  pa r tners  a t  Reg iments  

Cap i ta l  company,  wh ich  a l ready  had es tab l i shed 

bus iness l inks  w i th  S ta te  owned compan ies . ”  

D id  you ever  know tha t  tha t  i s  how Tr i l l i an  was fo rmed wi th  

Mr  Wood break ing  away f rom Reg iments?  10 

MR GAMA:    I  th ink  i t  i s  th ings tha t  we came to  

unders tand.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t .  

MR GAMA:    There  was a  sess ion  f rom Reg iments  tha t  was  

asked in  favour  o f  Tr i l l i an  a t  the  po in t  when i t  happened.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wood las t  month  bought  Essa ’s  

shares in  Tr i l l i an  tha t  wou ld  have been  August  2017.  

“But  when conf ron ted w i th  a l legat ions tha t  Gupta ’s  

o r  the i r  assoc ia te  had p i cked up the  tab  Gama 

ins is ted  he  had pa id  h is  own way. ”  20 

Is  tha t  what  you sa id?   

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “Gama a lso  p rov ided an  invo ice  

wh ich   

he  c la imed to  be  f rom the  Obero i  and wh ich  i s  
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s tamped pa id .   The invo ice  does not  show the  

ho te l ' s  name,  does not  say  who se t t led  the  b i l l  and 

was pr in ted  in  June 2017 a  year  and a  ha l f  a f te r  he  

s tayed a t  the  Obero i  Hote l  and around the  same 

t ime he was approached fo r  comment  by  Times L i ve  

fo r  the  f i rs t  t ime. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes ,  I  d id  no t  have a  copy o f  the  b i l l .   So I  

approached the  ho te l  to  send me,  I  jus t  gave them the  

dates  when I  was  there .  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  bu t  th is  paragraph re f lec ts  tha t  

you prov ided the  journa l i s t  w i th  an  invo ice .  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  i t  cou ld  be  th is  invo ice .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  how can I  be  tha t  invo ice  

because i t  i s  recorded here  un less  i t ' s  wrong,  tha t  the  

invo i ce  does not  show the  ho te l ' s  name.  Does not  say  you 

se t t led  the  b i l l  and was pr in ted  in  June 2017.  

MR GAMA:    He probab ly  go t  i t  wrong.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  do  I  unders tand tha t  you say  

tha t  you sent  th is  invo ice  250.341 to  the  journa l i s t?  20 

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    R igh t?   

MR GAMA:    Yes,  there  is  no t  any o the r.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “The leaked emai l s  rev iewed  

however   
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tha t  a  month  a f te r  Gama s tay  in  February  2016 the  

Obero i  emai led  Chawla ’s  a  s ta tement  fo r  Sahara  

Computers  ou ts tand ing  account . ”  

I  th ink  we have seen tha t ,  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  we have seen tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “On the  account  Gama’s  b i l l  i s  l i s ted   

as  unpa id ,  inc lud ing  tha t  o f  Dene l ’s  Board  

Cha i rperson Mr  Dan Mantsha and Eskom head o f  

genera t ion  Matshe la  Koko.   The amount  i s  the  same 

as on  the  invo ice  Gama prov ided. ”  10 

We have seen tha t ,  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes we saw tha t  th is  morn ing .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry,  can go back to  the  invo ice  

be fore  one,  the  journa l i s t  there  says tha t  the  invo ice  tha t  

she is  ta l k ing  about  o r  he  i s  ta lk ing  about  was s tamped  

pa id .  I  see the  words pa id  here ,  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  tha t  i s  

s tamped pa id .  

Can any o f  you see s tamped pa id  or  a  s tamp wi th  

pa id  because I  th ink  tha t  i s  what  I  expected somewhere  i t  20 

says s tamped pa id .  

MR GAMA:    I  a lso  d id  no t  -  th is  one has got  the  ho te ls  

names so  I  do  no t  know how they wou ld  say i t  d id  no t  have 

the  ho te l  name.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.  
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MR GAMA:    So  i t  i s  incons is tency  and so  one cannot  ta lk  

on  beha l f  o f  the  repor t .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So i f  you  look a t  the  invo ice  there  is  

no  s tamped pa id .   Then there  is  an  er ro r  because there  is  

the  ho te l  name and then the  invo i ce  tha t  the  journa l i s t  had 

accord ing  to  th is  parag raph was pr in ted  in  June 2017.   Can 

you see tha t  341 was pr in ted  in  June 2017? 

MR GAMA:    I  cannot  see any da tes  on  tha t  bu t  I  do  have 

the  ac tua l  emai l  tha t  was sent  to  me,  so  I  do  no t  have the  10 

dates  on  here ,  I  do  no t  know where  the  person gets  the  

da tes  f rom.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    When we were  a t  the  1 ,2 ,3 ,4 ,5  the  

6 t h  characte r  o f  in  the  m idd le  o f  the  page.   Quote :  

“ I  can conf i rm tha t  Sa l im Essa o f  Tr i l l i an  was a  

cont rac tor  o f  Transnet  Gama sa id . ”  

D id  you p rov ide  tha t  in fo rmat ion  to  the  journa l i s t?   

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Quote :  

“When I  was in  Davos,  I  rece ived a  request  fo r  a  20 

meet ing  f rom Essa s ince  I  have t rave l led  on  

Emi ra tes  A i r l ines ,  he  suggested  he meet  me in  

Duba i  dur ing  the  s topover  s ince  he was in  Duba i  a t  

the  t ime Gama cont inued. ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?   
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MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Quote :  

“ I  agree and he suggested tha t  we –  sor ry,  tha t  he  

w i l l  reserve  a  ho te l  room which  I  pa id  fo r  he  sa id  

add ing  tha t  Tr i l l i an  and Reg iments  cont rac ts  were  

la te r  cance l led  by  Transnet . ”  

I s  tha t  cor rec t?   

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    “Gama exp la ined tha t  Essa quote   

ra ised the  issue o f  h is  invo lvement  in  Tr i l l i an  wh ich  10 

was be ing  fo rmed  as  an  o f f  shoot  o f  Reg iments . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  i t  must  have been the  d i scuss ions tha t  I  

had w i th  Essa when I  was in  Duba i .   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Now you remember  on  Monday,  when  

you gave ev idence,  you r  ev idence was tha t  there  had been  

no ment ion  o f  Tr i l l i an  and there  was no ment ion  o f  a  

m igra t ion  f rom Reg iments  to  Tr i l l i an .   You spoke  in  the  

abst rac t  about  the  po tent ia l  fo rmat ion  o f  a  who l ly  owned 

b lack  consu l tancy  company.  20 

MR GAMA:    Tha t  i s  co r rec t ,  Cha i r,  bu t  on  Monday,  i t  was  

now f i ve  years  a f te r  I  had met  Essa,  th is  one is  p robab ly  

more  co r rec t  because i t  was probab ly  s t i l l  f resher  in  my 

head in  te rms o f  what  I  th ink  i s  there .   Th is  i s  2017 ,  th is  i s  

four  years  ago and so  i f  you  ask  me now,  s ix  years  la te r,  I  
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cannot  g ive  you exact ,  exact  bu t  I  th ink  the  contex ts  and 

the  d iscuss ion  remains  the  same.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  te l l  us  what  you and Mr Essa  

d iscussed about  Tr i l l i an  in  Duba i?  

MR GAMA:    Do you want  us  to  read the  ar t i c le  wh ich  looks 

a  l i t t le  b i t  f resher  o r  you want  me to  t ry  and reca l l ,  I  wou ld  

need to  read th is  because th is  happened in  2017,  Cha i r.   In  

te rms o f  one 's  memory,  and a t  tha t  t ime,  I  wou ld  say i t  was 

s t i l l  a  b i t  f resher.   I  cannot  remember  word  fo r  word ,  bu t  I  

th ink  the  contex t  as  I  have sa id  o f  c rea t ing  a  b lack  owned 10 

f i rm wi th  the  consu l t ing  capab i l i t ies ,  South  A f r i can  owned  

was rea l l y  the  key th ing  tha t  was be ing  d iscussed.   So,  you 

w i l l  see  in  2017 Tr i l l i an  had then a lso  had in fo rmed by  tha t  

when I  met  Essa  I  th ink  i t  was s t i l l  a  concept .   So I  th ink  

those are  the  d i f fe rences.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l  you say here  tha t  Essa ra ised 

the  issue o f  h is  invo lvement  in  Tr i l l i an ,  wh ich  has been  

fo rmed as  an  o f fshoot  o f  Reg iments ,  o f  course ,  the  loan  

wh ich  you autho r ised payment  o f  tha t  was to  Tr i l l i an  in  

December  o f  2015,  no t  so?  20 

MR GAMA:    We go ing  to  have to  have to  look  a t  the  da te .  

CHAIRPERSON:    So is  the  pos i t ion  tha t  you had not  

in tended to  go  to  Duba i  o r  s top  there  and spend two n igh ts  

p r io r  to  Mr  Essa ca l l ing  you,  tha t  i s  a  change in  your  p lan  

tha t  o r  ge t  as  a  resu l t  o f  tha t  ca l l  f rom h im? 
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MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  wanted to  buy  the  dress  tha t  was my 

who le  in ten t ion .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes.   

MR GAMA:    And  then when he ca l led  then I  go t  the  idea  

tha t  in  any event  when I  am s topp ing  there  I  cou ld  j us t  s tay 

one n igh t  longer.   I t  sounds l i ke  t on igh t ,  ear ly  hours  o f  the  

morn ing .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  and then.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   10 

MR GAMA:    And then I  jus t  spend one n igh t  and  then I  

le f t ,  ja .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  you may have been there  fo r  

a round 24 hours  or  jus t  over  24  hours .  

MR GAMA:    I  say  36 .  

CHAIRPERSON:    About  36?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay.   

MR GAMA:    Be tween 30 and 36,  I  was there .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.   20 

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  so  in i t ia l l y,  were  you go ing  to  

spend the  n igh t  a t  a l l  there  –  you were  go ing  to  have a  

s top  over  by  and then proceed?  

MR GAMA:    Ja ,  I  was go ing  to  s top  over  and I  th ink  the  



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 83 of 137 
 

s topover  was fa i r l y  long…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja ,  qu i te  a  few hours .  

MR GAMA:    I t  was seven o r  e igh t  hours  a t  the  a i rpor t  and  

then cont inue.  

MR GAMA:    Then cont inue,  ja .   

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  So you say in  te rms o f  the  two  

n igh ts ,  i t  m igh t  look  l i ke  two n igh ts  in  the  normal  way but  i t  

was less  than 48 hours?   

MR GAMA:    Yes,  no  abso lu te ly.   I  wou ld  have ar r i ved  

there  p robab ly  one or  2am there .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  okay.  

MR GAMA:     And then…[ in tervene]  

CHAIRPERSON:    And then o f  course ,  in  the  ho te l  you 

have been booked the  prev ious n igh t .  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  the  ho te l  s ta r ts  charg ing  you f rom 7  

o 'c lock  the  p rev ious day.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Yes,  okay a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    In  re la t ion  to  tha t  paragraph  what  I  

have been ask ing  you about  whether  o r  no t  you author i sed 

payment  to  Tr i l l i an  in  December,  perhaps you cou ld  jus t  20 

keep your  f inge r  a t  318 sor ry,  311 and then tu rn  to  page 

250.72.  

So 250.72 th is  i s  an  invo ice  f rom Tr i l l i an  fo r  Leader  

Ranger  o f  the  ZAR 12 b i l l i on  c lub  loan fac i l i t y  and you  

were  be ing  charged Transnet  R82mi l l ion  w i th  VAT 
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R93mi l l ion .  I s  tha t  cor rec t  tha t  you autho r ised tha t  the  3 r d  

o f  December  2015?  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    The month  be fore  you meet  Mr  

Essa?  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  except  tha t  th is  i s  Tr i l l i an  Asset  

Management  wh ich  is  a  cap i ta l  ra is ing  ent i t y,  as  I  

unders tand i t ,  i t  i s  owned by  someone e lse ,  a  d i f fe ren t  

person.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i f  we go back to  311.  10 

MR GAMA:    So  I  do  no t  know a t  wh ich  po in t  Essa 

assumed any ownersh ip  o f  Tr i l l i an ,  whethe r  i t  i s  th is  

Tr i l l i an  or  i t  i s  another  Tr i l l i an .   I  th ink  you may have the  

name,  bu t  I  th ink  there  were  someth ing  ca l led  Tr i l l i an  

Cap i ta l  I  th ink  tha t  cou ld  be  Tr i l l i an  Consu l t ing .   So I  do  

no t  th ink  i t  i s  the  same ent i t ies  tha t  we are  ta lk ing  about .  

CHAIRPERSON:    Oh,  they m ight  be  re la ted  compan ies .   

MR GAMA:    Yeah,  they cou ld  be  re la ted  par t ies ,  in  te rms  

o f  maybe ownersh ip  bu t  th is  one o f  Tr i l l i an  Asset  

Management  was  a  d i f fe ren t  en t i t y.  20 

CHAIRPERSON:    I  am sor ry  you sa id?  

MR GAMA:    And i t  cou ld  a l so  qu i te  poss ib le  Cha i r  tha t  

when we are  ta l k ing  i n  2017,  you now know the  name o f  

the  en t i t y  tha t  was eventua l l y  fo rmed to  be  th i s  Tr i l l i an  

because i f  you read th is  newspaper  a r t i c le ,  i t  says  tha t  
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Wood las t  month  bought  Essa ’s  shares in  Tr i l l i an ,  so  I  do  

no t  know those dea l ings,  I  am not  p r ivy  to  tha t  bu t  lo ts  o f  

th ings cou ld  have  happened.   

CHAIRPERSON:    Okay,  what  page d id  you say we must  go  

to  Mr  Myburgh?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  taken Mr  Gama to  page 72 ,  I  wou ld  

want  to  go  back now to  the  ar t i c le  a t  311,  Cha i rperson.   So 

then the  next  pa ragraph says:  

“Essa sa id  the  exper t i se  wou ld  remain  the  same as  

core  resources wou ld  be  migra ted  f rom Reg iments  10 

and tha t  the  qua l i t y  o f  work  fo r  Transnet  wou ld  be  

unaf fec ted  Gama to ld  Times L ive . ”  

D id  you say tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  I  must  have.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A l r igh t ,  and  then:  

“Gama was booked to  s tay  in  the  de luxe su i te  fo r  

two days be tween  January  22  and 24,  2016. ”  

I t  says  tha t :  

“You were  permanent ly  appo in ted  as  GCEO in  Apr i l  

2016 a f te r  ac t ing  in  tha t  pos i t ion  f rom Apr i l  2015. ”   20 

I t  goes on to  say:  

“F l igh t  book ings found in  the  leaked emai l  show tha t  

AJ Gupta  was in  Duba i  fo r  ha l f  a  day a t  the  same 

t ime.   Gama den ied  ever  hav ing  met  w i th  A jay  

Gupta ,  say ing  he  on ly  met  Essa in  Duba i  and la te r  
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conf i rmed he had met  Essa on prev ious occas ions  

a t  the  Transnet  o f f i ces . ”  

Was tha t  re fe r red  to  those two occas ions tha t  you have 

tes t i f ied  about?  

MR GAMA:    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then there  is  a  lo t  in  the  next  

page.   I t  i s  no t  par t i cu la r ly  re levant  bu t  can I  take  you fou r  

parag raphs f rom the  bot tom o f  page 312:  

“ In fo rmat ion  f rom the  leaked Gupta  emai ls  revea led  

a  cont rac t  be tween Hong Kong  based company 10 

Tequesta  owned by  Essa and locomot ive  

manufac ture r,  Ch ina  South  Ra i l  wh ich  resu l ted  in to  

Tequesta  ne t t ing  around R5.3b i l l i on  in  consu l tancy  

fees s ince  2014.  CSR one o f  four  compan ies  was  

awarded the  l ine  share  o f  Transnet  R50b i l l i on  

locomot ive  procu rement  p ro jec t  in  2014.   Gama in  

Ju l y  th is  year  announced Transnet  had appo in ted  

Workman 's  a t to rneys to  conduct  an  invest iga t ion 

in to  these c la ims,  wh ich  inc lude  whethe r  o r  no t  

Transnet  was ove rcharged and i f  i t  fo l lowed i t s  own  20 

procurement  p rocesses. ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  any o f  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    I  th ink  the  invest iga t ions wh ich  we s tar ted  in  

June or  Ju ly  2017 were  occas ioned by  these repor ts  tha t  

we rece ived and  I  th ink  we then rece ived there  a lso  a 
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fo rmal  le t te r  f rom the  EFF wi th  much more  de ta i l ,  wh ich  we  

then gave to  Workmen in  o rder  fo r  them to  under take the  

invest iga t ion .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And then i t  goes on to  say:  

“Advocate  Geoff  Bud lender  was  a lso  tasked to  

invest iga te  Tr i l l i an  by  i t s  fo rmer  Board  Cha i r  Tokyo  

Sexwale . ”  

I t  conc ludes by  say ing :  

“H is  repor t  re leased a t  the  end o f  June 2017 sa id  

Transnet  pa id  around R105mi l l ion  to  Tr i l l i an  10 

between Apr i l  and June 2016 some o f  wh ich  appear 

to  be  work  Reg iments  had ac tua l l y  done, ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?   

MR GAMA:    Yes ,  i t  was on th is  bas i s  tha t  there  appeared 

to  be  -  what  do  they ca l l  i t?   Between Reg iments  and  

Tr i l l i an ,  they appeared to  be  a  lo t  o f  f igh ts  tha t  they p icked  

up amongst  themse lves a f te r  Reg iments  had asked  us  to  

cede the  work  to  Tr i l l i an  and then when Transnet  had pa id  

some o f  these invo ices to  Tr i l l i an  then Reg iment  had come 

back a t  a  la te r  s tage and sa id  look,  th is  invo ice  shou ld  20 

have been pa id  to  Reg iments  or  there  were  c la ims  tha t  the  

peop le  were  no t  Tr i l l i an  peop le  they were  Reg iments  

peop le .  

We s tar ted  ge t t ing  ve ry  confused a t  Transnet  as  to  

what  was Tr i l l i an  and what  was Reg iments  and i t  was a t  
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tha t  po in t  –  because now peop le  had to  genera te  c red i t  

no tes  and deb i t  no tes ,  i t  seemed tha t  there  was d isputes 

and a rguments  even amongst  them as to  whether  the  

peop le  who had  done the  work  had le f t  Reg iments  to  

become Tr i l l i an .   

So you know i f  somebody has been work ing  fo r  you,  so  

somebody came to  the  company,  they were  Reg iments  a t  a  

po in t  and then they say no ,  we are  no  longer  Reg iments  or 

part  of  Tr i l l ian we are cont inuing wi th the work and then this 

other new people who are Tr i l l ian and then Regiments comes 10 

back later and says no but  you know these people to be 

Regiments people why do you pay Tr i l l ian?  I t  was that  k ind 

of  confusion that  started to ar ise and then we then said look 

we do not  want to get  involved in  whatever i t  is that  they 

were doing because Regiments had wri t ten to us to say there 

was a re-engineer ing exercise that  they were performing and 

this is as a resul t  of  that  re-engineering exercise Tr i l l ian 

would now do the work.    

 They then came back maybe in August  or September 

I  cannot  remember saying that  re-engineering exerc ise that  20 

they wanted to do had not  succeeded and that  therefore 

everything would now go back to Regiments.  

 We now found ourselves at  the cent re of  t ry ing to say 

was this invoice Tr i l l ian was i t  Regiments i t  was whatever 

then?  I  just  said to the legal  team look there is lots of  th ings 
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that  are going on here that  I  do not  understand i t  is  just 

bet ter for us to ext r icate ourselves f rom this connect ion that 

was this – was this sent .  

CHAIRPERSON:   I t  sounds l ike sounds simi lar to  what I  

have heard in relat ion to Eskom McKinsey and Tr i l l ian and 

Regiments but  I  do not  see what is  confusing as far as I  am 

concerned because i f  you are Transnet you have a contract  

wi th Regiments and they have done the work you owe 

Regiments not  somebody else.   I f  some of  Regiments staff  

res igns or move elsewhere you pay Regiments.   I t  is thei r  10 

own story what  they do.   You have a cont ract  wi th  

Regiments.    

MR GAMA:   Ja I  th ink what you did not  hear Chai r  they wrote 

to us in March on the reports – Regiments wrote to us in 

March and say we are ceding the contract  to Tr i l l ian so then 

the cession took place and then the invoices were now being 

paid to Tr i l l ian.  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  I  would… 

MR GAMA:   And then at  a later date Regiments then says 

you paid … 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   You should have paid us.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Not  them.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes but  what… 
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MR GAMA:   And then we are saying to them we are not  the 

ones that  should be t ry ing to manage your disputes as 

Transnet and then they were wri t ing al l  k inds of  le t ters to  

say but  even the people that  came there they were 

Regiments people you knew that  etcetera,  etcetera.   That  is 

when we then just  said look we had been told by Regiments 

that  they are ceding the cont racts to Tr i l l ian and that  is why 

we paid Tr i l l ian.   I f  Regiments is saying they want to hold 

Transnet l iable for something which they are saying belongs 

to them but  was paid by Transnet  to Regiments – I  mean to 10 

Tr i l l ian that  was the confusion Chair  I  was not  confused 

about who we should pay but  we are now get t ing into ni t ty 

gr i t ty of  th ings that  had nothing to do wi th us.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes thank you.   Perhaps whi lst  we now 

deal ing wi th Tr i l l ian and this club loan there someth ing that  

is on our radar can we perhaps just  deal  wi th that?  The club 

loan documents i f  we going to deal  wi th them in 

chronological  order need to start  p lease wi th page 298 – 

250.298 and this  is a memorandum to the BADAC as we 20 

know i t  f rom yoursel f  that  is  what  i t  ref lects request ing to 

appoint  Tr i l l ian as lead manager in the 1 bi l l ion ZAR 

equivalent  c lub loan.   I f  you go to the end of  the document  

Mr Gama page 302 the recommendat ion was that  the 

acquisi t ions and d isposal  commit tee  
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1.  Approve the appointment of  Tr i l l ian in the place of  JP 

Morgan as a lead manager wi th the 1.5 bi l l ion dol lar  

ZAR equiva lent  c lub loan which was previously 

conf ined to JP Morgan.  

2.  Approve the terminat ion of  JP Morgan’s ZAR 

syndicat ion loan.  

3.  Delegate author i ty to the GCE to approve al l  

documentat ion re lat ing to th is conf inement.  

And that  is something that  you recommended yoursel f  on the 

22n d of  September 2015.  Is that  correct? 10 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So what was the cause of  or the need 

for the terminat ion of  JP Morgan’s ZAR syndicat ion loan? 

MR GAMA:   Ja.   So Chai r  th is is a  memo which when I  s ign 

i t  i t  is f ive days old.   Can we agree wi th that  as I  mean seven 

days old can we agree wi th that  Mr Myburgh?  I t  is compi led 

by the Group Treasurer because we are going to have to 

read into the record what the Group Treasurer to ld us as the 

compi ler of  the document.   So he compi les the document on 

the 15t h – is i t  the 15t h? – oh okay i t… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   In September 2017 – wel l  you know… 

MR GAMA:   I t  is 17 September.  

CHAIRPERSON:    When they wri te dates l ike this.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   You do not  know whether 17 is the date or 
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the year but  … 

MR GAMA:   Ja I  start  wi th the year but  a lot  of  people start  

wi th the date.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GAMA:   With the date ja.   Ja he started wi th the page.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Oh so that  is the date – ja the day – 

MR GAMA:   So he starts on the 17t h .  

CHAIRPERSON:   September 2015.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay the next  one is s igned on the same 10 

date.  

MR GAMA:   Ja so those two could have been together to 

sign i t .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja and the next  one signed the day  

MR GAMA:   On the 18t h.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And then you signed on the 22n d of  

September.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Right .  

MR GAMA:   So when you read in to the record you need to 20 

then say you ask the quest ion and then the two of  us can 

then go to  the board of  the document to f ind out  the 

quest ions that  Mr Myburgh wants to ask.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   As to why i t  was necessary to 

terminate JP Morgan’s mandate.   What part  do you want to 
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go to? 

MR GAMA:   So in the discussion under discussion he says 

under number 12 that  when i t  became apparent  that  JP 

Morgan – maybe let  us start  i t  a  l i t t le bi t  ear l ier.   On number 

6 or maybe at  number – at  number 4 he says that  there were 

two t ranches to this.   One is a US dol lar 1.5 bi l l ion faci l i ty 

and the other one is a standby faci l i ty of  1 bi l l ion dol lars.  

And then he ind icates that  JP Morgan had been appointed 

through a conf inement  to  lead the club – the ZAR club as a 

subst i tute for the US dol lar standby faci l i ty to br ing the 10 

overal l  costs of  the t ransact ion lower and to avoid foreign 

exchange exposure.    

 And then at  number 6 he then says Transnet  

considered a dual  t ranche to fund the Chinese locomot ives 

acquisi t ion.  

 And then at  number 7 he then says i t  was decided to 

ut i l ise the 1.5 b i l l ion f rom CDB and JP Morgan was to 

underwri te the ZAR equivalent  funding which was then the 1 

bi l l ion.   So JP Morgan was in i t ia l ly going to underwri te 1 

bi l l ion dol lars.   20 

 He then says i t  would have enabled Transnet to meet 

the rat ing urgency requi rements.   And then consequent ly  

there was a revised term sheet and mandate let ter wi th CDB 

as a resul t  of  that  and then he says Regiments Capi tal  was 

appointed as a 1064 locomot ive funding advisor and he then 
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says that  one of  their  SD ini t iat ives was to develop other  

smal ler black owned organisat ions in the industry and that  is 

when then this Tr i l l ian Asset  Management then ar ises – he 

says i t  is one of  the benef ic iar ies of  that  in i t iat ive.  

 I f  we then go into JP Morgan he says that  i t  became 

apparent  that  JP Morgan would not  be able to del iver the 

ZAR loan Regiments and then Regiments engaged with i ts  

SD benef ic iar ies to see i f  there were opt ions avai lable to 

Transnet.  

 And he then says that  Tr i l l ian would be able to 10 

del iver on Transnet ’s requi rements for a club loan deal  at  a  

pr ice and tenure which was most  comparable to both the 

CDB loan and the Morgan proposal .  

 So he then moves away f rom the in i t ia l  underwri t ing 

which was – JP Morgan was going to do the 1 bi l l ion 

according to th is.  

 Then he moves to a club loan which means di fferent  

banks would now syndicate di fferent  amounts to create the 

same thing.   I  th ink they ca l led i t  lended – I  cannot – I  th ink 

they used a word lended funding.  20 

 The reason they said they went for  th is was because 

i t  would be cheaper to do a blended loan wi th di fferent  banks 

than for JP Morgan to do one where i t  underwr i te i t  i tsel f .  

 I  th ink that  was the discussion but  I  was not  party to  

the discussion so everything that  I  know is the things that  I  



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 95 of 137 
 

was told and l istening.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight  so you conf i rm then i f  I  

understand you correct ly that  the Group Treasurer Mr 

Ramasabudi  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Was the actual  author of  th is.  

MR GAMA:   That  is correct .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   This memo. Alr ight .   So that  is  

something you signed on 22 September 2015 can you then 

please go to page 250.63.    10 

CHAIRPERSON:   Just  before we go there wi th regard to th is 

memo Mr Gama my understanding of  the fact  that  you were 

the most  senior person among the signator ies.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Of  that  memo and that  the memo was 

di rected at  a higher author i ty I  would imagine.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   A commit tee of  the board my 

understanding would be that  you would be the one taken to 

be the owner of  the memo.  Now I  must  explain what  I  mean 20 

when I  say the owner.  

 As far as the – the commit tees is concerned to whom 

the memo was addressed i f  they wanted to hold anybody 

responsible about  what they were told here they would look 

to you because you are the most  senior person who – who 
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s igned whether your subordinates got  anything wrong that  

would be between you and your subordinates.  Would that  be 

a fa i r  understanding? 

MR GAMA:   Ja.   Some of  these issues Chair  are complex 

matters.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GAMA:   And we always had to make sure that  the people 

who – so somebody would have come for instance I  probably 

would have cal led Peter to say okay you guys have come up 

wi th th is can you explain for me 1,  2,  3,  4 and then they 10 

would explain and I  would say okay now i t  makes sense.   

And then on that  basis then I  would sign and then we go to  

the commit tee but  I  would not  even at tempt Chai r  at  the 

commit tee to t ry and explain this mysel f .  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR GAMA:   We would get  the compi ler,  the t reasurer to go 

to the commit tee to explain this because this is what they do 

for a l iv ing.   This is what they wake up to go to work to do.  

The Chief  Execut ive is the General  Manager.   A Chief  

Execut ive… 20 

CHAIRPERSON:   They are special is ts.  

MR GAMA:   Yes these people are special ists in thei r  area.   

The Chief  Execut ive is somebody who t r ies to br ing a lot  of  

d i fferent  issues together but  you cannot  be a Jack of  al l  

t rades.   Ja.  
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CHAIRPERSON:   So – so what you are saying is –  is what 

you are saying this?  That  yes to a certain extent  the 

commit tee would be ent i t led to look to me.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Because I  am the most  senior person who 

recommended.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  am expected to recommend what I  

understand.  

MR GAMA:   That  is correct .  10 

CHAIRPERSON:   I  cannot recommend something I  do not  

understand.  

MR GAMA:   That  is correct .  

CHAIRPERSON:   But  there would be an understanding that  

there might  be certain int r icacies in  respect  of  which I  might  

need special ists.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   To come and explain some of  the detai ls.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Is that  r ight? 20 

MR GAMA:   That  is correct  and in  fact  when the memo is  

st i l l  new i t  is st i l l  even f resh in your  mind what they have 

explained to you but  i f  you meet the same memo.  

CHAIRPERSON:    Ja years later.  

MR GAMA:   Years later you … 



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 98 of 137 
 

CHAIRPERSON:   You wi l l  not  remember.  

MR GAMA:   You wi l l  not  remember because i t  is not  – i t  is 

not  your bread and but ter.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay a lr ight .   Mr Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Do I  understand that  you then rel ied 

heavi ly on the advice of  Mr Peter? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And this  was in August  – sorry 

September of  2015? 

MR GAMA:   September 2015 yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  just  want to – to ment ion to  you there 

is evidence before the commission that  Mr Peter in  August  of  

2015 and other months received so cal led invoice t racking 

schedules f rom Mr Wood at  Regiments.  

MR GAMA:   Sorry he received what? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So cal led invoice t rack ing schedules 

f rom Mr Wood at  Regiments that  indicated payments being 

paid to Gupta Linked shel l  companies for example Homix 

etcetera.   I t  indicated how payments made to Regiments 

were then spl i t  out  amongst  var ious companies.   Did you 20 

know anything about that? 

MR GAMA:   No I  do not  know anything about i t .   You are 

saying he knew about … 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  am saying there is some evidence 

before the commission that  you received invoice t racking 
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schedules which ref lected how amounts paid to Regiments 

were disbursed amongst  var ious companies.  

MR GAMA:   (Mumbl ing).  

CHAIRPERSON:   He is  saying there is evidence that  has 

been led before the commission which ref lects that  around 

this t ime September and other months of  2015 or thereabout  

he Mr Peter was being furnished with invoice schedules 

showing how money that  had been paid to Regiments was 

being divided or d ist r ibuted among certain companies re lated 

to the Gupta’s  or associated wi th  the Gupta ’s.   Is that  correct  10 

Mr Myburgh? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes certainly.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes so that  is what he is saying.  

MR GAMA:   So that  is what he is saying.   Okay.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja that  is what  he is saying and he is 

asking whether you know anything about that  

MR GAMA:   No.  

CHAIRPERSON:   And I  th ink you have said – ja.   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So perhaps I  can just  and I  do 

appreciate that  you have not  been party to th is.   Let  me just  20 

explain i t  in a l i t t le bi t  more detai l .  

 So the evidence before the commission and of  course 

I  premise al l  of  th is again DCJ on the fact  that  i t  is  a – i t  is 

not  to say that  you wi l l  accept  th is but  there is some 

evidence that  ref lects the fol lowing Mr Gama and that  is  that  



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 100 of 137 
 

Regiments were appointed as McKinsey’s ski l ls  supply 

development  partner  in relat ion to the 1064 t ransact ion 

advisory cont ract  and they were appointed in  ci rcumstances 

where there was an agreement that  Mr Essa would get  50% 

kickback of  Regiments fees payments to them and Mr 

Moodley would – Kuban Moodley would get  5%.  

 Now the two ent i t ies nominated by those gent lemen 

were Mr Essa payments were made to a company by the 

name of  Homix and in the case of  Mr Moodley payments 

were made to a company by the name of  Albert ime.  10 

 So what these invoice t racking schedules would show 

is amounts paid.  So they came in f rom Mr Wood f rom 

Regiments they would show that  X amount was paid to 

Regiments and then i t  would ref lect  that  50% was due to 

Homix and f ive 5% was due to Albert ime. Those are the 

schedules that  there is evidence of .   Mr Peter  having 

received and incidental ly  i t  is something that  st i l l  needs to  

be deal t  wi th Mr Singh also is st i l l  to be – this is st i l l  to be 

put  to him but  there is a lso some evidence to the effect  that  

he simi lar ly received those schedules.  20 

MR GAMA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   You do not  know about that? 

MR GAMA:   No,  no I  do not  know anything about i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then I  d id  put  to you yesterday for  

what i t  is worth that  you probably have heard that  Mr Singh 
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had eight  safe deposi t  boxes at  Knox Vaul t  – you have heard 

that  have you? 

MR GAMA:   No I  do not  know the number.   I  have heard this  

concept  of  Knox Vaul t  as you know I  did  wri te  to  the 

commission about i t  because my name was also at  some 

point  associated wi th th is.  

CHAIRPERSON:   So you. .  

MR GAMA:   I  do not  know the… 

CHAIRPERSON:   You heard about the company and you 

heard that  he had some safety boxes but  you do not  know 10 

the number? 

MR GAMA:   Yes,  no there was a newspaper art ic le Chai r.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Yes okay.    

MR GAMA:   That  said there was these vaul ts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.  

MR GAMA:   As I  understand i t  is safety deposi t  boxes and in  

– in that  newspaper art ic le my name was ci ted.  So I  had 

occasion then i t  was in 2019 to wri te to the commission to 

say I  see my name next  to th is Knox Vaul ts but  I  th ink we 

have since come back to indicate that  no my name should 20 

not  have been there.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

MR GAMA:   I t  should not  have appeared there.   But  I  know 

that  Mr S ingh’s name also appeared next  to  that .   I  th ink i t  

was also – i t  was my name and Brain Molefe and S ingh but 
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some of  that  is not  t rue.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Wel l  I  th ink perhaps i t  is appropriate to 

place formerly on record as you know Chairperson that  there 

is certain ly no formal evidence f rom within the commission 

that  Mr Gama has or had a safety deposi t  box at  Knox 

Vaul ts.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Ja.   

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And then perhaps just  to end that  o ff  

Mr Peter wel l  certainly h is mother I  do not  know i f  you know 10 

anything about th is she – he or she had seven safe deposi t  

boxes there.  

MR GAMA:   No I  do not  know anyth ing about i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay wel l  I  suppose we al l  keep our  

money in di fferent  places.   Now that  is then the 22nd of  

September 2015.  Take you to the – the next  document in the 

chronology and that  you f ind at  page 250.63.  So remember 

the memorandum that  you recommended was placed before 

the acquisi t ion or i t  was meant for the acquisi t ion and 

disposal  commit tee.  20 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And you see that  on this  1s t  of  October 

2015 they then resolved essent ia l ly  exact ly the same as your 

recommendat ion.  Correct? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   Then i f  you go over the page on the 

18t h of  November 2018 this document is addressed to 

Transnet by Tr i l l ian.   The document you wi l l  see that  you 

signed.  

MR GAMA:   Where are you now? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  beg your pardon I  am at  page 64 the 

page af ter the – the resolut ion.  

MR GAMA:   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Of  the DADC. 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So this  is a let ter seems of  

engagement let ter real ly dated the 18t h of  November f rom 

Tr i l l ian to Transnet and you wi l l  see at  page 250.66 that  you 

signed this document.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And so d id Mr Peter.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And i t  s igned on behal f  of  Tr i l l ian by 

Mr Daniel  – is i t  Ray? 

MR GAMA:   I  th ink i t  says Roy.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Roy.   Had you ever met Mr Daniel  

Roy? 

MR GAMA:   No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Had you ever  met anybody f rom 

Tr i l l ian? 
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MR GAMA:   Ja which Tr i l l ian?  These Tr i l l ians there are 

many of  them.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Th is Tr i l l ian – this let ter comes f rom 

Tr i l l ian Bout ique Asset  Management.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.   I  do not  know Mr Roy.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   But  had you ever met anyone f rom this 

company? 

MR GAMA:   Yes I  thought that  you had said that  Mr Wood he 

bought some shares f rom Tri l l ian.   I  had known Wood f rom 

Regiments.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So th is is a le t ter of  engagement – i t  is  

the R12 bi l l ion club loan faci l i ty and i f  you go over  the page 

to 65 you wi l l  see that  at  3.1 the th i rd paragraph R82 mi l l ion 

due and payable upon execut ion of  the c lub loan faci l i ty  

agreement re lat ing to the t ransact ion.  Do you see that? 

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So that  is 18 November 2015.  You wi l l  

see i f  you now go to page 72 that  on the same day 18 

November 2015 Tr i l l ian then furnish Transnet  wi th an 

invoice,  do you see that? 20 

MR GAMA:   Yes.   The invoices were I  th ink they 

accompanied this.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.    

MR GAMA:   They probably accompanied this agreement and 

are related to … 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:   A l r ight .  

MR GAMA:   That  document that  you were showing me earl ier 

that  Mr Ramasabudi .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Okay.  

MR GAMA:   Wrote ja.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   So do I  understand that  the work had 

then al ready been done?  Is that  what you are saying? 

MR GAMA:   Sorry.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Had the work al ready been done or …? 

MR GAMA:   No,  no I  am saying that  – i f  I  take you back.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   To where we were.   I f  I  take you to 303.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes.  

MR GAMA:   There is a document at  303.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja we are going to  come to that  in the 

chronology.  

MR GAMA:   Yes so… 

CHAIRPERSON:   So when you take – when you say take you 

back you mean take you forward? 

MR GAMA:   No we were there.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  – we were not  at  303 I  th ink the 

document you are looking for. . .  

MR GAMA:   We were in the page before.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Ja.  

MR GAMA:   That  is when  
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CHAIRPERSON:   Oh.  

MR GAMA:   When you said let  us go to the next  page I  went  

to th is page but  you were somewhere else.  

CHAIRPERSON:   Okay yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   I  th ink you meant 298 Mr Gama. In 

other words i t  is l inked to that  Ramasabudi  memo.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   That  you approved.   Absolutely.  

MR GAMA:   I  am saying al l  of  th is they should be read 

together.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:   Yes no absolutely.    

MR GAMA:   Because they are part  of  the same let ter.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   We get  the – we get  the memo,  we get  

the BADAC resolut ion and then we get  the let ter of  

engagement – said we must read i t  together.  

MR GAMA:   Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   And we get  the invoice.   So I  th ink the 

only point  I  am making is perhaps I  could just  ask you to 

comment on this.   There is  a let ter of  engagement in other  

words these people are saying this  is what we are going to  20 

do.   Right .   And we are going to be paid upon the execut ion 

of  the club loan faci l i ty.  They tel l  you that  on the 18t h of  

November 2015 and on the same day they send you an 

invoice that  you see at  page 250.72.   Correct? 

MR GAMA:   Yes except  that  the memo that  we just  gone 
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through Ramasabudi  c la ims that  they have been working wi th  

him for  f ive months previous – this is the memo that  we sent  

to the board.   So he says at  page 300 po in t  24 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Okay Mr  Gama,  Tr i l l i an  has no t  

ex i s ted  fo r  f i ve  months .   That  i s  the  po in t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    Wel l ,  I  do  no t  know.   I  am jus t  te l l ing  you what  

Ramosebud i  says .   So he says I  have been wr i t ing  to  these 

peop le  fo r  f i ve  months  and then  he then wr i tes  another  

memo to  say f ind  th is  agreement  wh ich  is  the  ag reement  

tha t  we a re  go ing  th rough now.   Th i s  i s  what  we are  10 

d iscuss ing  now wi th  Mr  Myburgh ,  in  November.   He then  

says he re  is  an  agreement  tha t  you must  s ign .   So I  am 

say ing  a l l  o f  these th ings are  re la ted .   We must  no t  look  a t  

them as i f  they  are  no t  re la ted .   The f i rs t  th ing  tha t  

happens is  the  memo.   I t  i s  the  memo tha t  goes to  the 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Commi t tee .  

MR GAMA :    . . . to  the  commi t tee .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

MR GAMA :    Then the  commi t tee  approves.   Once the  20 

commi t tee  approves,  you then get  the  reso lu t ion .   And then 

he wr i tes  another  memo a t tach ing  th is  ag reement  and tha t  

i s  the  one I  sa id  tha t  I  sa id  we must  no t  p re tend as  i f  they  

are  no t  re la ted .   And he wr i tes  another  memo,  a t tach ing  

th is ,  to  say can you p lease s ign  the  ag reement  based on  



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 108 of 137 
 

what  was approved on the  1s t  o f  October.   Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  Mr  Gama,  I  fu l l y  apprec ia te  they  

must  be  read together  bu t  i f  I  take  you back to  the  invo ice .   

Do I  unders tand what  you are  say ing  there  is ,  as  fa r  as  you  

are  concerned,  th is  work  had a l ready been done? 

MR GAMA :    Accord ing  to  what  I  have jus t  showed  you on 

page 300.24.   He says tha t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Sor ry.   I  am so r ry,  Mr  Gama.   You have  

ta lked about  page 300.24.  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  paragraph 24 you are  ta lk ing  

about?  

MR GAMA :    I t  i s  parag raph 24.  

CHAIRPERSON :    A t  page 250.300? 

MR GAMA :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  i t  reads . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  yes  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    “F inanc ia l  adv i sor  negot ia t ions   

suppor t  the  Tr i l l i an  prov ided th rough th is  20 

en t i re  p rocess took in  excess o f  f i ve  months  

wh ich  was done a t  r i sk  w i th  the  expecta t ion  o f  

compensat ion  on ly  on  successfu l  comple t ion  o f  

the  t ransact ion . ”    

 That  i s  what  he  sa id .  
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MR GAMA :    Yes ,  tha t  i s  what  he  sa id .   So I  am say ing  i f  

you  take  i t  f rom tha t ,  then you are  say ing  th is  work  tha t  

has been done fo r  f i ve  months  be fore  th is  and then he then 

a t taches th i s  agreement  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    . . . to  the  o ther  memo.   So i t  i s  now month  s i x .   

So I  th ink  you have to  assume,  accord ing  to  h im,  i t  i s  now 

the  s i x th  month  and then he re  i s  an  invo ice .   So I  am 

say ing  to  you,  Mr  Myburgh,  tha t  i f  i t  cannot  be  tha t  you 

th ink  tha t  as  soon as  the  agreement  i s  s igned,  then the re  10 

is  an  invo i ce .   Accord ing  to  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  he  is  say ing  

they have done work  fo r  s i x  months .   That  I  canno t  vouch.   

I  have never  been. . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  what  you are  say ing  is .   I  guess your  

answer  shou ld  have been a  yes to  Mr  Myburgh.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    You are  say ing ,  based on what  you were  

to ld ,  you unders tood tha t  work  had been done fo r  f i ve  

months?  20 

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    What  you are  say ing  is .   Whether  tha t  

was fac tua l l y  t rue  or  no t ,  you do no t  know.  

MR GAMA :    That  I  do  no t  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  
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MR GAMA :    But  I  am jus t  say ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    [ Ind is t inc t ]  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    . . . f rom what  –  yes.  

[Par t ies  in te rven ing  each o the r  –  unc lear ]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   You say tha t  was your  

unders tand ing .  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   H ’m.   Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   And then what  we see –  so  

tha t  was your  unders tand ing  and then what  see is ,  i f  you  10 

go to  page 73.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am so r ry.   Where  i s  the  agreement  tha t  

Mr  Gama says . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We wi l l  come to  the  memo bu t  I  th ink  

he  re fe rs  to ,  Cha i rpe rson,  in  the  ch rono logy.  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    There  is  another  memo and I  am 

go ing  to  come to  tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  the  i nvo ice  is  da ted  15 November  20 

–  oh ,  sor ry  –  18  November  2015.   And then i f  you go over  

to  page . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Where  is  the  invo ice?  I  am t ry ing  to  

make sure  I  do  no t  lose  you.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    The invo ice  is  a t  page 72,  



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 111 of 137 
 

Cha i rperson.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    250.72.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  these documents  a re  too  fa r  apar t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  they are .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And i t  makes i t  d i f f i cu l t  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . to  fo l low.  

MR GAMA :    That  i s  what  I  was say ing .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  10 

MR GAMA :    That  we got  a l l  o f  them together  and 

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  no t  poss ib le ,  Mr  Myburgh,  even i f  i t  

i s  a f te r  today.   Maybe because o f  the  compl i ca t ions  o f  the  

–  o f  pag ina t ion .   Is  i t  no t  poss ib le  to  take  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We cou ld  t ry  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .a l l  o f  tha t  together  and put  them a t  the 

back . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We can t ry.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . in  the  r igh t  sequence.  Ja .  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Not . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    There  wou ld  be  dup l ica t ion  bu t  tha t  i s  

f ine .   Then we know where  to  f ind  a l l  o f  them.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We wi l l  do  tha t ,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .    



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 112 of 137 
 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   So the  invo i ce  is  a t  page  

72.   A t  page 73 is  the  payment  adv i ce  da ted the  

19 t h  o f  November.   I s  tha t  a lso  your  s ignature?  

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Gama? 

MR GAMA :    Oh,  i s  i t  75? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    73 .  

MR GAMA :    73?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Page 250.73?  Po in t  73 .   Because I  am 

look ing  a t  page 73 but  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    250.72 and 250.73.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay a l r i gh t .   I t  seems tha t  i t  w i l l  be  

impor tan t  to  keep  on say ing  250 because . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cer ta in ly.  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . . there  may be  confus ion  i f  we jus t  say  

so  because there  is  a  73 .   Okay 250.73.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.   So tha t  takes us  to  the  

19 t h  o f  November  2015.   Now,  i f  I  can  take  you,  p lease,  to  20 

the  second memorandum tha t  Mr  Gama has been re fer r ing  

to  and the  agreement  tha t  you asked about  Cha i rperson.   

That  memorandum,  you w i l l  f ind  back a t  page 303 –  

250.303.   Th is  i s  now s igned  by  Mr  Gama on the  

3 r d  o f  December  2015.   And Mr  Gama,  you conf i rm tha t  you  
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have s igned i t  on  the  3 r d  o f  December  2015?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And is  th is  aga in  –  th is  i s  someth ing ,  

i t  seems,  tha t  i s  addressed  to  you,  Mr  Peter  and  

Mr  Se l inga f rom Mr  Ramosebud i .   So he is  aga in  the  au thor  

o f  th is  document  in  e f fec t .   I s  tha t  r igh t?  

MR GAMA :    That  i s  cor rec t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And the  recommendat ion  is .    

“ I t  i s  recommended tha t  the  ac t ing  GCE and  

the  GCFO s ign  o f f  on  Tr i l l i an  Asset  10 

Management ’s  invo i ce  fo r  se rv i ces  rendered to  

and beha l f  o f  Transnet  in  th is  capac i ty  as  

Tr i l l i an ’s  o r ig ina t ing  and coord ina t ing  mandate  

leader  ranger  o r  ZAR 12 b i l l i on  c lub  fac i l i t i es . ”    

 I s  tha t  cor rec t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A t  then takes us  back.   So a f te r  you  

have s igned tha t  on  the  3 r d  o f  December  2015,  p resumable  

i f  you  go to  page  72,  tha t  i s  then what  caused you to  s ign  

the  invo ice  on  tha t  day?  20 

MR GAMA :    Yes .   So,  as  he  says  in  h is  recommendat ion ,  

e i ther  commence  tha t  me and the  ac t ing  CFO s igns  on  the  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  

MR GAMA :    Yes bu t  i t  i s  the  same day.  
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  DCJ,  when you asked about  the  

cont rac t .   There  i s  no  cont rac t  f rom what  we can work  ou t .   

The c losest  one gets  to  i t  i s  rea l l y  the  le t te r  o f  engagement  

tha t  you w i l l  f ind  a t  64 ,  wh ich  is  a  fo rmal  le t te r  s igned by  

Mr Roo i  and Mr  Gama and Mr  Peter.    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Gama,  you conf i rm tha t?   When you 

ta lked about  a  cont rac t ,  you are  re fer r i ng  to  the  le t te r  o f  

engagement?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.    10 

MR GAMA :    I  th ink  in  tha t  the  par t ies  t r ied  to  pu t  in  p lace  

whatever  the  expecta t ions were ,  Cha i r.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  okay.  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And then,  i f  you  go to  page  74 you 

w i l l  see  th is  i s  a  bank record  o f  Tr i l l i an  wh ich  re f lec ts  and 

th is  we get  f rom co l leagues o f  ours  in  Money- f low.   On the  

4 t h  o f  December  2015,  there  i s  an  incoming payment  o f  

R 93 480 000,00.   Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And tha t  was the  money pa id .   And 

then i f  you go down about  the  m idd le  o f  the  page,  you see 

an ent ry  8  December  2015.   The s i x th  en t ry,  

8  December  2015 ,  there  is  a  payment  ou t  to  A lba t ime of  

R 74 784 000,00.   Do you see tha t?  
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MR GAMA :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    We then a l so ,  Cha i rpe rson,  a t tached  

some par ts  o f  the  t ranscr ip t  re levant  to  o r  re la t ing  to  the  

ev idence o f  Mr  Mohammed Mohammedi  and  

Mr  Ramosebud i .   Mohammed Mohammedi  was ca l led  w i th in  

th is  s t ream.   Mr  Ramosebud i  was ca l led  w i th in  t he  Money-

f low S t ream,  as  you might  remember.  

 Can I  jus t  take  you,  p lease,  to  page 76?  I t  i s  an 

ex t rac t  f rom Mr  Mohammedi ’s  ev idence.   And a t  l ine  18 ,  

Advocate  Ph i l l i p  Makena SC sa id :  10 

“Do you know why Tr i l l i an  was pa id  tha t  

amount?   What  was or  what  d id  they do  to  be  

pa id  tha t  amount?”  

 Mr  Mohammedi  answered:  

“Wel l ,  i t  i s  a l leged tha t  they were  a  supp ly  

deve lopment  pa r tner  to  Reg iments .    

That  i s  the  in fo rmat ion  tha t  i s  be ing  presented  

but  in  d iscuss ion  and tha t  I  have had,  they are  

unab le  to  f ind  any documenta t ion  or  any 

ev idence tha t  Tr i l l i an  d id  in  fac t  work  on  the  20 

ZAR Club Loan.    

We do not  be l ieve  –  we a re  no t  ab le  to .    

We have d iscussed th is  w i th  the  prev ious 

Treasurer.    

We asked fo r  s imp le  documenta t ion ,  e t  
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ce te ra . . . ”  

 A re  you ab le  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    Wel l ,  I  th ink  the  Treasure r,  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  i s  

the  r igh t  person to  ta lk  to  th i s .   I  cannot  ta lk  to  th i s .   I  was  

g iven the  impress ion ,  Cha i r,  and g iven the  unders tand ing ,  

as  we  have read  together  those documents ,  tha t  Tr i l l i an  

had done a l l  o f  th is  C lub  Loan ar rangement  work .   And so  I  

do  no t  know i f  I  have to  go  and say le t  us  look a t  what  the  

work  was,  what  i t  i s  tha t  I  wou ld  look fo r.   I  do  no t  know 

but  the  Treasurer  ind ica ted  to  us  tha t  they have done the  10 

C lub  ar rangements .   So I  wou ld  no t  be  ab le  to  comment  on  

what  Mohammedi  i s  say ing ,  what  he  saw or  what  he  d id  no t  

see.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Mr  Gama,  d id  you yourse l f  w i tness  

any work  be ing  done?  You must  remember  tha t  Tr i l l i an  i s  

an  o f fshoot  o f  Reg iments .   D id  you  w i tness any work  be ing  

done by  anyone a t  Tr i l l i an?  

MR GAMA :    Mr  Myburgh,  I  have sa id  to  you tha t  I  d id  no t  

do  any o f  th is  work .   I t  i s  –  I  d id  no t  ge t  invo l ved  in  th is  

f inanc ia l  th ings.   So my invo lvement  i s  when Ramosebud i  20 

says we must  go  to  the  ADC.   Tr i l l i an  has been do ing  th is  

work .   We must  change f rom JP Morgan,  we must  change  

f rom Underwr i t ing  to  c rea te  a  C lub  Loan and these  are  the  

peop le  who have done tha t  work .   So I  never  even been to  

the  Group Treasurer ’s  o f f i ce .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    So ,  you can e i ther  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I  cannot  . . . [ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    You can ne i ther  d ispute  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I  cannot  d i spute  i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .when i t  was done?  

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  I  do  no t  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    So  when somebody says i t  was no t  done,  

you cannot  say  anyth ing .  

MR GAMA :    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  they  say i f  i t  was done,  you  do not  10 

know? 

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Wel l ,  le t  me then take  you 

to  Mr  Ramosebud i .   I f  you  have a  look a t  page 250.80.   My  

co l league,  Mr  Chaska lson SC says :   “Wel l  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    You sa id  wh ich  po in t?   Ze ro ,  e igh t  po in t  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    250.80.   E igh ty.  

CHAIRPERSON :    E igh t ,  zero .   Okay.   Yes,  cont inue.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    My co l league,  Mr  Chaska lson SC 

says:    

“Wel l ,  the  ev idence w i l l  show tha t  the  amount  

o f  R 93 480 000,00 was pa id  in to  Tr i l l i an ’s  

bank account  on  4  December.  
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A re  you aware  tha t  four  days la te r,  80% of  tha t  

amount ,  be ing  R 74 780 000,00 was 

t ransfer red  to  A lba t ime?”  

 He says:  

“ I  am not  aware  o f  tha t . ”  

 And then he is  asked:  

“Wel l ,  can you th ink  o f  any reason?  D id 

A lba t ime p layed  any ro le  whatsoever  in  the  

C lub  Loan?”  

 He says,  we l l ,  he  does not  know.    10 

 Now,  Mr  Gama,  jus t  aga in  to  po in t  ou t  tha t  on 

these invo ice  t rack ing  schedu les  tha t  were  prov ided to  

Mr  Peter,  payments  to  A lba t ime were  ac tua l l y  re f lec ted .   

And then over  the  page,  page 81,  four th  l ine .   D id  you –  he  

asked h im:    

“D id  you ever  encounter  A lba t ime a t  a l l? ”  

 In  the  second l ine :  

“No,  I  have never  encountered A lba t ime. ”  

 And then he re fe rs  to  Kuben Mood ley.   D id  you 

ever  meet  Kuben Mood ley?  20 

MR GAMA :    No.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Now,  inc identa l l y,  p r io r  to  g iv ing  th is  

ev idence,  Mr  Ramosebud i  a t  page 232,  he  was asked by  

Mr  Chaska lson:  

“Had you seen anyone f rom Tr i l l i an  ac tua l l y  
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a r rang ing  the  loan?”  

 Then Ramosebud i  sa id :  

“A t  the  beg inn ing  when we were  dea l ing  w i th  

th is  they were  no t  there . ”  

MR GAMA :    Sor ry,  he  sa id  what?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    He sa id :  

“A t  the  beg inn ing  when we were  dea l ing  w i th  

th is  they were  no t  there . ”  

 Chaska lson says:  

“Yes,  they were  no t  the re  and the  10 

ar rangements  were  be ing  made by  peop le  then 

a t  Reg iments . ”  

 Ramosebud i  sa id :  

“That  i s  p rec ise l y  t rue . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry,  Mr  Myburgh.   Where  a re  you?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  I  am read ing . . .   Cha i rperson,  

th is  i s  no t  in  the  –  these documents .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  am read ing  f rom page 232 o f  the  

t ranscr ip t  o f  Day 314.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  in  the  bund le?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay a l r igh t .   P lease jus t  repeat  

what  you read because I  was not  ab le  to  connect  w i th  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  a t  l ine  21  Advocate  Chaska lson 

says:  

“Had you seen anyone f rom Tr i l l i an  ac tua l l y  

a r rang ing  the  loan?”  

 Ramosebud i :  

“A t  the  beg inn ing  when we were  dea l ing  w i th  

th is  they were  no t  there . ”  

 Advocate  Chaska lson:  

“Yes,  they were  no t  the re  and the  

ar rangements  were  be ing  made by  peop le  then 10 

a t  Reg iments . ”  

 Mr  Ramosebud i  sa id :  

“That  i s  p rec ise l y  t rue . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you have any comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA :    So  what  a re  you say ing?  Are  you  say ing  

Mr  Ramosebud i  says the  peop le  who d id  the  work  were  

f rom Reg iments  bu t  he  dec ided to  te l l  us  we must  pay 

Tr i l l i an?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    That  seems to  be  what  he  sa id  when he  

is  be ing  quest ioned by  Mr  Chaska lson.  

MR GAMA :    So  perhaps the  work  was done but  by  o the r  

peop le  and not  by  Tr i l l i an  bu t  he  then dec ided tha t  he  

wou ld  m is lead us  and te l l  us  tha t  Tr i l l i an  had been do ing  
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the  work .   I  th ink  tha t  i s  the  sum- to ta l  o f  i t  f rom what  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Cer ta in l y  tha t  i s  what ,  f rom your  po in t ,  

you wou ld  say i f  you  sa id  h is  memos sa id  to  you Tr i l l i an  

had done the  work  over  the  p rev ious f i ve  months .  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And you say now,  he  says Reg iments  d id  

the  work .   You wou ld  then say bu t  tha t  i s  no t  what  he  sa id  

in  the  memo here ,  i f  tha t  i s  how you unders tood h is  memo.  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  because I  th ink  i t  i s  then mis lead ing .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  perhaps  I  cou ld ,  jus t  to  f in ish  o f f  

on  th is ,  take  you  to Exh ib i t  BB-27.   That  i s  the  Transnet  

POR Reference Bund le .    

CHAIRPERSON :    Mr  Myburgh,  I  must  say.   I  th ink  we w i l l  

ad journ  about  quar te r  to  f i ve ,  jus t  so  tha t  you can pace 

yourse l f  p roper ly.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Thank you,  Cha i rperson.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  Bund le  6?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    That  i s  Transnet  Bund le  6 .   Yes,  

Cha i rperson.   Exh ib i t  BB-27.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.   And tha t  i s  on  what  page? 

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  wou ld  l i ke  to  take  you,  p lease,  to  



30 APRIL 2021 – DAY 386 
 

Page 122 of 137 
 

page 398.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    And cou ld  I  jus t  d i rec t  you r  a t ten t ion  

because there  is  re fe rence he re  a lso  to  the  s ta tements  

made by  Mr  Ramosebud i?  

CHAIRPERSON :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  cou ld  I  ask  you,  p lease,  to  have a  

look a t  398,  paragraph 2 .7 .29  f rom the  MNS repor t?  

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  fu r thermore ,  in  our  in te rv iew 10 

w i th  Ms Matshepo –  and we know tha t  she is  f rom 

Reg iments .   She conf i rmed tha t :  

“A l l  the  work  done in  re la t ion  to  the  C lub  Loan  

was executed by  Reg iments .   By  the  same 

token,  Messrs  P Ramosebud i  and A lan i  Mage le  

conf i rmed in  our  in te rv iew tha t  they on ly  dea l t  

w i th  Ms Matshepo and Mr  Wood f rom 

Reg iments . . . ”  

MR GAMA :    So ,  you are  say ing  th is  i s  a  d i f fe ren t  s t ream?  

D id  you es tab l i sh  then why Mr  Ramosebud i  had  c la imed 20 

tha t  Tr i l l i an  d id  the  work?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Do you have any comment  on  tha t ,  

Mr  Gama? 

MR GAMA :    I  was not  there .   I  cannot  comment  on  i t .   I  am 

ask ing  . . . [ in te rvenes]   
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    You see . . . [ in te rvenes]   

MR GAMA :    I  was ask ing  a  quest ion  whethe r  –  was 

Mr  Ramosebud i  ever  asked why  he sa id  Tr i l l i an  d id  the  

work  when i t  was done by  Reg imen ts?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe before  we ta lk  about  tha t  

quest ion .   I  jus t  want  to  make sure  you unders tand two  

po in ts ,  7 .29  a t  page 398 to  the  ex ten t  tha t  you might  no t  

know Ms Matshepo,  who is  re fe r red  to  there ,  she used to  

work  fo r  Reg iments .   You might  o r  you might  no t  know.   

She used to  work  fo r  Reg iments .   She has g i ven ev idence  10 

in  the  Commiss ion  and she d id  move to  Tr i l l i an  a t  some 

s tage coming f rom Reg iments .  

MR GAMA :    H ’m.  

CHAIRPERSON :    So MNS,  f rom what  we see here ,  d id  

in te rv iew her  as  we l l  and so  she is  the  one he re  who,  

acco rd ing  to  MNS,  conf i rmed tha t  a l l  the  work  done in  

re la t ion  to  the  C lub  Loan was executed by  Reg iments .   I  

th ink  in  re la t ion  to  Eskom to  –  you w i l l  reca l l ,  ear l ie r  on  I  

sa id  what  you were  te l l ing  i s  s im i la r  to  what  I  have heard  

in  re la t ion  to  Eskom,  McK insey,  Tr i l l i an  and Reg iments .  20 

MR GAMA :    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Because in  –  under  Eskom too ,  Eskom 

pa id  a  ce r ta in  amount  o f  money.   I  th ink  R 30.4  m i l l ion  or  

R 34 mi l l ion ,  I  cannot  remember,  to  Tr i l l i an  in  

c i rcumstances where  is  tha t  d ispute  as  to  who shou ld  have 
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been pa id  and i t  seems tha t  i t  i s  Reg iments  who had pa id  –  

who had done the  work  bu t  I  th ink  somebody l i ke  Mr  S ingh  

might  a t  some s tage jus t  f ind  tha t  Tr i l l i an  had made – had  

done the  work  bu t  I  th ink  he  seems to  accept  now tha t  i t  

looks  l i ke  Reg iments  had done the  work  bu t  Tr i l l i an  was 

pa id .  

 So she tes t i f ied  in  regard  to  the  Eskom s i tua t ion  

as  we l l  and sa id  i t  was Reg imen ts  wh ich  had done the  

work .   So i t  looks  l i ke  here  too ,  in  re la t ion  to  Transnet ,  she  

says:  10 

“ In  regard  to  the  C lub  Loan,  Reg iments  had 

done the  work  bu t  Tr i l l i an  was pa id . . ”  

MR GAMA :    And maybe tha t  i s  why,  Cha i r,  I  was say ing  to  

you ear l ie r  tha t  we got  confused because Reg iments  

s ta r ted  wr i t ing  lo ts  o f  le t te rs  to  us  say ing  tha t  we have  

pa id  the  wrong peop le  bu t  I  do  no t  th ink  i t  was in  re la t ion  

to  th is  one.   What  I  do  no t  unders tand,  s t i l l ,  i s .   I f  

Reg iments  d id  the  work  why there  now anothe r  en t i t y  too . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    To  do  what?  

MR GAMA :    To  invo ice .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Wel l ,  maybe they d id  no t  a l low i t  to  

invo i ce .   [ laughs]  

MR GAMA :    Oh.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe i t  i s  invo i ced and the  quest ion  

was whether  e i ther  Transnet  o r  Eskom dec ided to  honour  
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the  invo i ce  even though anothe r  en t i t y  have done the  work ,  

you now.   So.   But  w i th  regard  to  the  quest ion  you  asked,  

Mr  Myburgh migh t  be  ab le  to  answer  bu t  I  can jus t  say  th is  

tha t  when Mr  Peter  –  was i t  Mr  Peter  o r  Mr  Ramosebud i ,  

who tes t i f ied  under  the  Money- f low Work  s t ream,  

Mr  Myburgh?  I  th ink  i t  was Mr  Ramosebud i .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  Ramosebud i .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   That  i s  another  work  s t ream.   I t  may 

be tha t  he  was asked about  tha t  aspect  o r  he  m ight  no t  

have been asked  because –  bu t  the i r  focus is  d i f fe ren t .   I t  10 

is  more  on  Money- f lows.   So I  cannot  remember  whe ther  he  

was asked o r  no t .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Cha i r  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    He ta l ked about  why he wro te  the  memo 

tha t  he  wro te  wh ich  you unders tood to  be  say ing  Tr i l l i an  

had done the  work .  

MR GAMA :    Yes,  tha t  i s  what  I  have known a l l  

. . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    . . . f rom what  he  had to ld  us  bu t  now you are  20 

say ing  no .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA :    When he says,  even h imse l f ,  tha t  i t  was  

peop le  f rom Reg iments .   So I  do  no t  know what  caused h im 

to  say to  us  i t  i s  Tr i l l i an .  
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CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m,  yes.   Mr  Myburgh,  you had asked 

the  quest ion  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

ADV MYBURGH SC :    Yes,  I  jus t  want  to  . . . [ in te rvenes]   

CHAIRPERSON :    . . .maybe tha t  has no t  been answered 

because I  in te r rup ted .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    I  th ink  the  impor tan t  th ing ,  Mr  Gama,  

to  apprec ia te  i s  what  ac tua l l y  go ing  on  around you here  

because when you look a t  Money- f lows.   Money- f lows 

re f lec t s  th is .   F rom the  3 r d  o f  December,  you s igned an 

invo i ce .   From the  4 t h  o f  December,  R 93 mi l l ion  i s  pa id  to  10 

Tr i l l i an .   On 8  December  2015,  80% of  tha t  i s  pa id  to  

A lba t ime.   A lba t ime is  l inked to  Gupta  money launder ing .    

MR GAMA :    H ’m.   Ja .    

ADV MYBURGH SC :    So  jus t  p ick  up  on 398.   You ta lked  

about  le t te rs  be ing  wr i t ten  by  Reg iments  and you  d id  no t  

th ink  tha t  i t  app l ied  here .   I  jus t  want  to  take  you to  

parag raph 2 .7 .31 .   I t  re f lec ts  tha t :  

“On 12 September  2016,  Reg iments  wro te  a  

le t te r  to  Transnet  and recorded the  fo l low ing in  

re la t ion  to  the  C lub  Loan,  the  payment  o f  20 

R 93 mi l l ion  fo r  the  C lub  Loan.  

Th is  fee  re la tes  to  work  done by  Reg iments  fo r  

the  cap i ta l  ra ised in  t ransact ion  management  

and hedg ing  adv isory  se rv i ces  re la ted  to  the 

1064 Locomot ives  Fund ing  together  w i th  the  
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C lub  Loan o f  wh ich  Reg iments  invo i ced and  

was pa id  the  re levant  fee . . . ”  

 So i t  i s  no t  tha t  they have a l lowed someone to  

ge t  the  fee .   They  say tha t  they invo iced and were  pa id .  

“Whi le  i t  was o r ig ina l l y  an t ic ipa ted  tha t  JP 

Morgan wou ld  be  appo in ted  –  ar ranges fo r  the  

C lub  Loan and Reg iments  wou ld  ass is t  JP 

Morgan in  the  execut ion  thereof .  

As  you are  aware ,  Reg iments  had requested  

Transnet  u l t imate ly  took over  fu l l  respons ib i l i t y  10 

as  lead managers  w i th  a l l  the  incumbent  work  

be ing  pe r fo rmed by  Reg iments .  

Th is  work  was comple ted  by  Reg iments  in  

December  2015. . . ”  

MR GAMA :    Ja ,  i t  was. . .   I  do  no t  know what  to  ca l l  i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    You see,  Mr  Gama.   You met  w i th  

Mr  Essa the  next  month  in  Duba i .  

MR GAMA :    Yes.  [ laughs]  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    A l r igh t .   Then I  jus t  wanted to  ask  

you,  p lease,  to  go  to  page – Bund le  7 ,  DCJ a t  page 168.  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  tha t  page 250.158?  

ADV MYBURGH SC :    No,  th is  i s  the  or ig ina l  168.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh.   Yes,  I  have got  i t .   Have you got  i t ,  

Mr  Gama? 

MR GAMA :    [No aud ib le  rep ly ]   
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ADV MYBURGH SC :    So ,  i f  I  cou ld  ask  you to  –  perhaps  

you can tu rn  to  the  beg inn ing  o f  the  f i le  a t  page 7 .   So your  

f inger  a t  168 and then p lease tu rn  to  page 7 .   Okay.   So 

can I  jus t  d i rec t  your  a t ten t ion  –  so  th is  i s  par t  o f  the  one  

o f  the  10 .6s  tha t  you were  issued w i th  and a t  pa rag raph  

1 .15  you spec i f i ca l l y  address in  add i t ions  in  the  a l legat ions  

in  the  …[ in tervenes]  

MR GAMA:    Sor ry,  page 7 ,  no  paragraph? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  we not  in  th is  –  no ,  you are  in  – 

sor ry,  can I  ask  you p lease to  go  to  bund le  7 ,  i t  i s  your  f i l e .  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    The one tha t  has  go t  you r  a f f idav i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:   EXHIBIT BB28.   I  do  apo log ise .  

MR GAMA:    Okay,  we go to  page 7 ,  you sa id?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    7  p lease.  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  th is  i s  par t  o f  one the  10 .6s  tha t  

was issued to  you.   Paragraph 1 .15 .  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You spec i f i ca l l y  address in  add i t ion  

to  the  a l legat ions in  the  a forement ioned a f f idav i t s  o r  20 

s ta tements  (annexures)  your  invo l vement  in  the  fo l low ing.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  paragraph 1 . . .?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Po in t  15 .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Not  a t  paragraph? 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  I  am a t  page 7  o f  bund le  7 ,  

Exh ib i t  …[ in te rvenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  I  am sor ry,  I  am look ing  a t  page 6 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    EXHIBIT BB28.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  I  am look ing  a t  page 6 .   

Okay,  I  have got  page 7 .   Ja?  And  the  paragraph? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    1 .15  you spec i f i ca l l y  address in  

add i t ion  to  the  a l legat ions in  the  a forement ioned a f f idav i t s  

o r  s ta tements  (annexures)  you r  invo l vement  in  the  

fo l low ing.   Have a  look a t  subparagraph 2 :  10 

“R1 b i l l i on  equ iva len t  c lub  loan invo lv ing  Tr i l l i an  as  

lead a r ranger . ”  

Do you see tha t?  

MR GAMA:    I  see  tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Asked to  address your  invo l vement  

in  tha t .   I f  you  go  then to  page 168 .  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You say a t  parag raph  53 a t  

parag raph 1 .15 .2  o f  the  no t ice :  

“ I  had no invo l vement  w i th  the  R1  b i l l i on  equ iva len t  20 

loan invo lv ing  Tr i l l i an  as  lead ar ranger . ”  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  am sor ry ,  Mr  Myburgh,  maybe i t  i s  too 

la te  in  the  day,  I  jus t  seem not  to  f ind  the  pages you a re  

re fer r i ng  to .   I  have got  –  I  am on Transnet  bund le  7 .  
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And I  am a t  page 168.   A re  you  ta lk ing  

about  250.168?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  the  or ig ina l  168.  

CHAIRPERSON :    That  i s  where  I  am but . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  page 53 o f  the  a f f idav i t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    H ’m?  Ja ,  i t  i s  page 53 o f  the  a f f idav i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Then I  am re fer r i ng  the  w i tness to  

parag raph 53,  so  tha t  i s  r igh t  a t  the  top .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Oh,  okay,  okay,  now I  can see.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i t  says  a t  pa ragraph 53 a t  

parag raph 1 .15 .2  o f  the  no t ice .   That  i s  the  regu la t ion  

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    The not ice  a t  page 7?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A t  page 7 ,  yes .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  bu t  –  because a l so  when I  was a t  

page 7 . . .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I  cou ld  no t  see  the  paragraph you were  

read ing  f rom.  20 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Okay,  so  DCJ …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    A t  parag raph 7  my f i rs t  parag raph is  

8 .2 .2 .4 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  a re  you  …[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    I s  i t  7  o f  15? 
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ADV MYBURGH SC:    No,  i t  i s . . .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Or  i s  i t  under  1  – I  have,  you know,  

when you come to  –  then i t  i s  BB28 the  green d i v ider .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  tha t  i s  r igh t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then you have got  Mr  Gama’s  

s ta tement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Wel l ,  how does bund le  s ta r t?  

CHAIRPERSON :    Maybe I  was look ing  –  I  th ink  I  was  

look ing  a t  Mr  Gama’s  s ta tement ,  tha t  i s  the  f i rs t  document  

tha t  I  have.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    How BB28 s tar ts ,  Cha i rperson,  i s :  

“Wi th  your  d i rec t i ve . . . ”  

CHAIRPERSON :    BB28 s ta r ts  w i th  in  the  ind i ces  or  one  

index.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then a f te r  t he  index the re  is  a  page  

w i th  Mr  Todd ’s  names a l l  ove r  and Mr  Makwanaz i .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  th ink  we have got  i t  –  we have to  

be  go ing  fundamenta l l y  wrong,  DCJ.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja ,  maybe Mr  Gama’s  s ta tement  was  20 

s lo t ted  in  the  wrong p lace.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    May have been.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Bu t  a f te r  the  s ta tement  I  have  go the  

10 .6  d i rec t i ve .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  
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CHAIRPERSON :    Which  s ta r t s  on  page 3  b lack  numbers .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    That  i s  co r rec t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    And then …[ in te rvenes]  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    And i f  you cou ld  go  to  page 7  o f  

tha t .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay.  Ja ,  you see,  I  was look ing  a t  page  

7  o f  Mr  Gama’s  s ta tement .   I  th ink  tha t  i s  where  –  now I  

can see.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  okay,  okay.  10 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  a t  page 7 ,  tha t  i s  par t  o f  the 

10 .6s ,  Cha i r .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  now I  have got  bo th  pages.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    So  the re  you w i l l  see  paragraph 

1 .15 .2  and the  answer  to  tha t  appears  a t  page 168.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  have got  i t  now.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You answer  i s  a t  53 :  

“ I  had no invo l vement . ”  

Do you want  to  comment  on  tha t?  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  I  can say i t  aga in  w i thout  any  fear  o f  20 

cont rad i c t ion  tha t  I  had no invo lvement .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Mr  Gama,  what  we have seen is  tha t  

you were  the  f ina l  s ignatory  on  the  recommendat ion  tha t  

served the  [ ind is t inc t ] ,  you then s igned the  le t te r  o f  

engagement ,  you  then s igned the  invo ice  and you were  
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a lso  a  s ignato ry  to  a  preced ing  memorandum author i s ing  

you to  do  tha t  and you say you no invo l vement?   

MR GAMA:    Mr  Gama,  read i t  fo r  me aga in ,  1 .15 .2 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I  suppose  you have got  to  read i t  

w i th  1 .15  as  we l l :  

“You spec i f i ca l l y  address in  add i t ion  to  the  

a l legat ions in  the  a forement ioned a f f idav i t  you r  

s ta tement  …[ in tervenes]  

MR GAMA:    No,  no ,  I  am say ing  1 .15 .2  a t  page 7 .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes?  10 

MR GAMA:    Read i t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You have to  read i t ,  you  w i l l  bear  

w i th  me fo r  a  moment ,  togethe r  w i th  the  lead ing  paragraph,  

ta lks  about  you r  invo lvement  in  the  fo l low ing:  

“The R1 b i l l i on  equ iva len t  c lub  loan invo lv ing  

Tr i l l i an  as  lead ar ranger . ”  

MR GAMA:    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Your  invo lvement .  

MR GAMA:    Yes and then I  say  to  you I  had no 

invo l vement  w i th  the  R1 b i l l i on  equ iva len t  loan invo lv ing  20 

Tr i l l i an  as  lead a r ranger .   I  do  no t  know anyth ing  about  i t ,  I  

s t i l l  do  no t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    A re  we then –  d id  we get  the  number  

wrong or  what  a re  we …[ in te rvenes]  
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MR GAMA:    Ja ,  you were  ta lk ing  about  R1 b i l l i on ,  i t  was 

R12 b i l l i on  tha t  we have been d iscuss ing .   There  is  a  huge 

d i f fe rence between R1 b i l l i on  and R12 b i l l i on .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I t  shou ld  have been the  1  b i l l i on  

do l la r .  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  so  you want  me to  answer  quest ions –  

tha t  i s  why I  say  to  you I  have no  fear  o f  cont rad ic t ion  on  

tha t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    I s  tha t  the  approach tha t  you 

adopted to  your  a f f idav i t?  10 

MR GAMA:    No,  i t  i s  no t  an  approach,  I  do  no t  know how 

many lead ar rangers ,  what  do  you  ca l l  i t ,  how many loans  

tha t  T r i l l i an  d id .   So you asked me about  a  par t i cu la r  loan  

and I  say  to  you I  do  no t  know anyth ing  about  i t ,  i t  i s  too 

…[ in tervenes]  

CHAIRPERSON :    Le t  us  jus t  ge t  –  le t  us  ge t  th is  c lear .   In  

the  top  d i rec t i ve :  

“You are  asked  to  address in  add i t ion  to  the  

a l legat ions i n  the  a forement ioned a f f idav i t s  o r  

s ta tements  and annexures your  invo lvement  in  the  20 

R1 b i l l i on  equ iva len t  c lub  loan invo lv ing  Tr i l l i an  as  

lead a r ranger . ”  

MR GAMA:    Ja .  

CHAIRPERSON :    So  –  and your  answer  i s :  

“ I  had no invo l vement  w i th  the…” 
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And you quote :  

“R1 b i l l i on  equ iva len t  loan invo lv ing  Tr i l l i an  as  lead  

ar ranger ”  

And f rom what  you are  say ing  your  po in t  i s ,  i f  they  

ment ioned the  R12 b i l l i on  then you wou ld  answer  

d i f fe ren t ly?  

MR GAMA:    Yes,  I  wou ld  answer  t ha t  d i f fe ren t ly .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

MR GAMA:    Because,  remember ,  Cha i r ,  I  am not  the  

Group Treasure r .    10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA:    I  do  no t  know how many loans tha t  what  do  

you ca l l  i t  tha t  Tr i l l i an  d id .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .  

MR GAMA:    The on ly  one tha t  I  know is  the  R12  b i l l i on ,  

tha t  one I  know.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  so  you a re  say ing  -  yes  bu t  th is  fo r  

R1 b i l l i on… 

MR GAMA:    The 1  b i l l i on  I  was no t  invo lved,  I  do  no t  know 

anyth ing  about  i t ,  Cha i r .  20 

CHAIRPERSON :    Okay,  a l r igh t .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You know o f  there  hav ing  been more  

than one c lub  loan.  

MR GAMA:    Sor ry?  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    You know o f  there  hav ing  been more  
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than one c lub  loan.  

MR GAMA:    I  wou ld  no t  know how many c lub  loans are  

there  a t  Transne t .   Transnet  has  go t  many,  many  loans.   

Got  many loans,  d i f fe ren t  ins t i tu t ions .   I  th ink  c lose  to  one  

hundred and someth ing  b i l l i on ,  i f  I  am not  m is taken.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Cha i rperson,  tha t  b r ings me to  the  

end o f  my quest ion ing  in  re la t ion  to  the  R12 b i l l i on  c lub  

loan.   Th is  i s  a  conven ien t  t ime to  ad jou rn .  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.   Okay,  we are  go ing  to  ad journ  

now.   What  i s  your  es t imate  o f  how much more  t ime you 10 

w i l l  need to  f in ish  a l l  the  ev idence? 

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Accumula t ive l y  p robab ly  one  day.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Bu t  cou ld  be  done eas i l y  I  th ink  over  

two n igh t  sess ions.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Yes,  I  was th ink ing  about  two n igh ts .   I  

th ink  what  I  wou ld  l i ke  bo th  teams to  do  is  to  see whethe r  

there  are  even ings next  week when everybody wou ld  be  

ava i lab le  because i f  I  have got  da tes ,  maybe a  few dates ,  

maybe two,  th ree ,  o r  whatever  bu t  maybe two,  th ree  o ther  20 

da tes  cou ld  be  g i ven fo r  the  fo l low ing week,  even ings,  jus t  

even ings.  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   So tha t  I  am go ing  to  look  a t  what  

even ings are  open next  week,  maybe tha t  o ther  week as  
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we l l  so  tha t  we i f  poss ib le  can s lo t  Mr  Gama in .   We can  

negot ia te  these dates  because they are  shor t  no t ice .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes.  

CHAIRPERSON :    I f  we can f ind  da tes  tha t  su i t  everybody 

we w i l l  use  them.   I f  we cannot  f ine  then we w i l l  g ive  more  

reasonab le  no t ice  and jus t  f i x  o ther  da tes .   So maybe Mr  

Myburgh and counse l  fo r  Mr  Gama,  you can ta l k  and then  

you can -  Mr  Myburgh,  you can  le t  me know over  the  

weekend what  da tes  have you got  ava i lab le .  

ADV MYBURGH SC:    Yes,  Cha i rperson.  10 

CHAIRPERSON :    Ja .   Okay,  Mr  Gama,  thank you fo r  

ava i l ing  yourse l f ,  we are  go ing  to  ad journ  and then i f  you 

come back next  week i t  w i l l  be  even ings tha t  have been 

agreed,  maybe ear l y  tha t  o ther  week i f  –  so  bu t  i f  we 

cannot  f ind  da tes  tha t  su i t  everybody then we jus t  g ive  

reasonab le  no t ice .   But  thank you.  

MR GAMA:    Thank you very  much ,  Cha i rman.  

CHAIRPERSON :    We ad journ .  

INQUIRY ADJOURNS TO 3  MAY 2021  


